
TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 
 

MAY 14, 2024 
4:00 P.M. 

VISUAL ARTS AND DESIGN CENTER 
 

LYNN CLEMENTS, CHAIR 
PRESIDING 

 

 
AGENDA 

 

 
1. Welcome and Call Meeting to Order – (4.00 p.m.) 

2. Program Highlight – (10 min.)  

“Grants Update”  
 

Dr. Michelle Woodhouse, VP of Academic Affairs and Chief Academic Officer 
Dr. Jenefer Snyder, AVP for Sponsored Programs & Center for Teaching Excellence 

 

3. Adoption of Consent Agenda (Board Member(s) may make request(s) to move item(s) 

from the Consent Agenda that requires further discussion later in the meeting). (Board approves 
motion to adopt the consent agenda).  

4. Approval of Action Item(s) on Consent Agenda (All item(s) under the Consent 

Agenda are enacted by one motion). (Attachment(s)) – (5 min.) 

a. Previous Meeting Minutes #338 for March 19, 2024 (Attached) 

b. Proposed 2024-25 Business and Industry Advisory Committees (Attached) 

c. New Program Request for Career Studies Certificate, Electrified Powertrains 
Technician (Attached) 

d. Discontinuance of the Career Studies Certificate in Restaurant Management 
(Attached) 

e. Proposed Policy 3201 – Naming of College Facilities (Attached) 

f. Proposed 2024-25 Local Fund Budgets (Attached) 

g. Skilled Trades Academy Lease Amendment (Attached) 

h. Resolution Honoring William (Bill) Crow (Attached) 

5. Academics, Student Affairs & Workforce Development Committee Report – 
Dr. Barry Brown, Chair (10 min.) 

a. Academic Affairs Updates – Dr. Michelle Woodhouse 

b. Student Affairs Updates – Dr. Karen Campbell 

c. Workforce Solutions Updates – Mr. Art Hall 



COLLEGE BOARD AGENDA 
May 14, 2024 
Page Two 

 
 

6. Finance & Facilities Committee Report – Dr. Kirk Houston, Chair (10 min.) 

a. Local Fund Financial Statements for Month Ending March 31, 2024 (Attached) 

b. Norfolk Campus Walker Building and Roper Theater Updates 

7. Advocacy Committee Report – Ms. Kim McCallum, Chair (10 min.) 

8. Educational Foundation Liaison Report – Mr. Andy Tysinger 

9. Real Estate Liaison Report – Dr. Kirk Houston 

10. Discussion & Approval of Action Item(s) (Removed from Consent Agenda) – (10 min.) 

11. President’s Report – (15 min.) 

12. Chair’s Report & Announcements – (30 min.)  

a. General Updates 

b. Report on Board Nominating Committee (Attached, for action) 

c. Executive Committee Report (Attached) 

d. Closed Session 

13. Adjournment 



   

         

 

TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 
 

MEETING NO. 338 
 

MARCH 19, 2024 
 

Meeting number three hundred thirty-eight of the Tidewater Community College Board was held at 

the Chesapeake Campus Student Center on Tuesday, March 19, 2024. 

 

Members Present:     Dr. Barry Brown   Jerome A. Bynum 

Lynn B. Clements   Dr. Marcia Conston   

Ron Green   Dr. Kirk Houston    

James (Jay) Lucado  Kim R. McCallum 

Hope Sinclair   Charles A. Tysinger  

   

Members Absent: William (Bill) Crow, Connie Meyer, Matthew Stakes   

     

Others Present: Curtis K. Aasen, Vice President for Information Systems and Institutional  

          Effectiveness  

   Chris Bryant, Vice President of Institutional Advancement 

   Karen Campbell, Vice President for Student Affairs  

   Lisa Conard, Director of Finance Operations    

Sarah DiCalogero, Chair of Faculty Senate  

Vincent Gary, Student Center Director 

Art Hall, Vice President of Workforce Solutions 

Heather Hardiman, Vice President for Administration & Chief Financial  

        Officer 

   Latesha D. Johnson, Executive Assistant to the President 

              Sarah (Beth) Lunde, Associate Vice President for Human Resources 

   Tina Price, Director of Auxiliary Services 

Chad Smith, TCC Adjunct Instructor 

Adrian Watts, Student Financial Services Manager    

Michelle W. Woodhouse, Vice President for Academic Affairs &   

       Chief Academic Officer 

 

    

1. Welcome and Call to Order 

Ms. Clements, chair, determined the presence of a quorum and called the meeting to order at  

4:00 p.m. and welcomed guests. Dr. Conston introduced the new Vice President of Workforce 

Solutions, Mr. Art Hall. 

 

2. Program Highlight 

Dr. Campbell introduced Mr. Gary, Ms. Price, and Mr. Smith to present the program highlight 

featuring an Athletics Update. The college fielded intramural and extramural basketball teams in 

the early 2000’s. The teams played in the VCCS club league.  TCC later added a men’s soccer 

program that competed at a club level against community colleges in VA, MD, and NC. 

Basketball eventually gained membership in region 10 of the National Junior College Athletic 

Association (NJCAA). By the end of the 2014-15 academic year, the college’s athletic offerings 



 

DRAFT 

 

  Meeting No. 338 

TCC Board 

  Page 2 

 

no longer remained active. The current NJCAA includes Camp Community College, Mountain 

Gateway Community College, Patrick & Henry Community College, Southside Virginia 

Community College, Southwest Virginia Community College, Virginia Peninsula Community 

College, Bryant and Stratton, and Richard Bland College. Competing within a specific division 

of an NJCAA sponsored sport comes with specific policies and guidelines published in the 

NJCAA Bylaws.  Member colleges are responsible for following and abiding by these 

guidelines. There are three divisions with scholarship guidelines.  Mr. Gary, Ms. Price, and Mr. 

Smith noted steps the college would have to complete to compete in the NJCAA. They also 

shared a 2024-25 TCC basketball launch timeline. 

 

3. Adoption of Consent Agenda 

Ms. Clements inquired if there were requests to remove any item(s) from the consent agenda to 

the full agenda.  Hearing none, she asked for a motion to accept the consent agenda.  On a 

motion by Mr. Lucado, seconded by Mr. Bynum, the board approved the consent agenda as 

presented. 

 

4. Approval of Action Items on Consent Agenda 

Referring to tab 4a – 4c of the meeting packet, the board approved meeting minutes #337 for 

January 16, 2024; Discontinuance of the AS in General Studies, Teacher Preparation 

Specialization; and add the AS in Education; AS in Education, Elementary Education Major; AS 

in Education, Middle/Secondary Education Major; AS in Education, Special Education Major; 

AS in Health Sciences; AS in Science, Biology Major; and AS in Science, Chemistry Major. 

 

5.  Curriculum & Student Development Committee Report – Dr. Barry C. Brown, Chair 

a. Academic Affairs Update – Dr. Woodhouse highlighted academic affairs programming and 

recognitions. TCC offers an A.S. in General Studies with a Teacher Preparation 

Specialization.  Faculty and Pathway Deans determined that the specialization should be 

replaced with the statewide A.S. in Education curriculum and the three associate majors: 

Elementary Education, Middle/Secondary Education, and Special Education.  These changes 

will better prepare TCC students to enter and complete teacher preparation programs in 

Virginia without the loss of credit.  The new Associate of Science degree in Education is 

designed for students who plan to transfer to a four-year college or university to earn a 

baccalaureate degree in education and meet Virginia’s teacher certification requirements. The 

college does not currently offer a transfer program that provides a natural pathway and 

required coursework for students who plan to transfer and pursue four-year degrees in health 

profession programs. The proposed Associate of Science: Health Sciences is a TransferVA 

(TRVA) Parent Degree program and includes the necessary preparatory coursework. TCC 

currently offers an Associate of Science: Science degree that serves as a general transfer 

degree for students interested in any science or science-related transfer programs at four-year 

institutions. These majors allow students to complete the necessary math and specific science 

coursework needed for a bachelor’s degree in biology or chemistry. 

 

 The TCC Pharmacy Technician Program was granted initial accreditation on October 24, 2023 

by the American Society of Health-System Pharmacists. A new requirement by the State of 

VA requires that all Pharmacy Technician Programs be accredited.   

 



 

DRAFT 

 

  Meeting No. 338 

TCC Board 

  Page 3 

 

 The Chancellor’s Award for Teaching Excellence is awarded annually to one teaching faculty 

member in the VCCS who distinctly represents teaching excellence found at the VCCS 

colleges. The award provides the recipient with a VCCS stole and $5,000.  Dr. Meagan 

Taliaferro is the recipient of this year’s award.  The George B. Vaughan Leadership Award for 

Outstanding Adjunct Faculty is the first VCCS award to recognize the approximately 4,600 

adjunct faculty members who are making an impact with our countless students across 

Virginia.  TCC’s faculty, Mr. Jeffrey Acosta, was the recipient of this award. 

     

The college’s Cyber Security Team (T4) won the 2024 Virginia Cyber Cup Competition in the 

community college division. 
 

b. Student Affairs Update – Dr. Campbell highlighted student affairs updates.  The grand 

opening of The Free Market at TCC was a huge success. Over 40 individuals from the campus 

and local community, including the media, participated in the momentous occasion. The 2nd 

Annual Career and Job Fair was held at the Chesapeake Student Center. TCC’s Spring 2024 

Open House was held at the Chesapeake campus, Norfolk campus, and Regional Automotive 

Center.  The Women in STEM Panel was held at the Advanced Technology Center.  The 

event was a collaboration between STEM Promise, Career Services and Computer Science. 

The college hosted a Trailblazing Women Symposium in honor of Women’s History Month.  

The symposium featured a panel of three inspiring women and a keynote address from the 

first African American woman to command the largest Naval Complex in the world. The Red 

Sand Project, an interactive art installation that is dedicated to raising awareness about human 

trafficking, was held at the Portsmouth campus.  Through a unique blend of art and activism, 

students and faculty engaged with the community to ignite change to end human trafficking. 

Dr. Campbell shared that the Portsmouth campus has a new Dean of Retention, Dr. Valerie 

Burge-Hall.    

 

c. Workforce Solutions Update – Mr. Hall shared his academia, education, and other 

experiences.  He reported an assessment of areas in Workforce at TCC.  Mr. Hall also 

provided an initial 5-year enrollment overview of the top programs (over 5 years): 

approximately 23,582 enrollments; 61% of enrollments from Business, Professional 

Development & Management and Health Sciences & Safety; Transportation (7%); 

Hospitality/Culinary (4%); IT (4%); Welding (3%); WorkKeys (3%); Military (3%); and 81% 

of programming. His vision for Workforce includes strengthening and expanding lower 

enrollment areas; exploring and adding programs; onsite certification assessments; and 

strengthening and adding business partnerships.         

 

6.   Finance & Facilities Committee Report – Dr. Kirk Houston, Chair 

a.  Local Fund Financial Statements for Month Ending January 31, 2024 - At the invitation of Dr. 

Houston, Ms. Hardiman provided local fund financial statements reflecting activity for seven 

months of the fiscal year.  She highlighted revenues and expenditures respectively for the 

student activities budget (68% / 46%), institutional auxiliary budget (68% / 48%), student 

center budget (65% / 77%), and auxiliary services budget (105% / 58%).  FY23-24 local 

investments and contributions from each city remained as expected.  Investments of $51.8 

million earned $1,108,815 through January 31, 2024. 

 



 

DRAFT 

 

  Meeting No. 338 

TCC Board 

  Page 4 

 

b. Mid-Year Report on 2023-24 State Operating Budget – The college’s state budget continues 

to be in sound financial order.  Revenues, including carryforward and HEERF-related funding, 

are anticipated to be $123,427,875.  Expenses, including personnel, are anticipated to cost 

$117,168,7209.  The college is anticipating a carryforward balance at the end of the fiscal 

year, which will be used to cover federally mandated work related to the Americans with 

Disabilities Act (ADA) at the Norfolk and Virginia Beach campuses. The total cost of this 

project will be $8 million; however, the anticipated college share is $4 million.  

 

7.   Advocacy Committee Report – Ms. Kim McCallum, Chair 

  Ms. McCallum asked Ms. Lunde to provide an update.  The Legislative Reception was held in 

January. Governor Youngkin and Delegate Don Scott outlined their vision for higher education. 

Dr. Conston had the pleasure of introducing the Speaker of the House, Delegate Scott. The 

General Assembly Visit was very successful.  The visit started with a briefing by Dr. Doré, 

Chancellor. He shared the VCCS legislative priorities for our region, which are healthcare, clean 

energy, and skilled trades.  Dr. Conston, board members, TCC staff, and 3 students met with 

senators and delegates from the Hampton Roads region.  Ms. Lunde shared photos of the General 

Assembly Visit. 

    

8.  Educational Foundation Liaison Report – Mr. Andy Tysinger 

Mr. Tysinger invited Mr. Bryant to provide an update.  Fundraising increased tremendously in 

2023, compared to 2010.  However, there are opportunities for growth as we solicit more donors. 

Most of the funds raised in 2023 were centered around our capital campaign for the Visual Arts & 

Design Center and the Skilled Trades Academy. TCC Proud, the college’s internal staff campaign, 

raised $31,265 with 118 staff donors. Mr. Bryant shared a list of recently established scholarships. 

In FY23-24, the Educational Foundation awarded 652 scholarships in the amount of $608,500. 

Mr. Tysinger emphasized that the board’s financial contributions are also important to support the 

students and college.   

 

9.  Real Estate Liaison Report – Dr. Kirk Houston  

 The Real Estate Foundation (REF) completed the negotiations with the Hampton Roads Sanitation 

District (HRSD) on the permanent and temporary easements needed at the College Point property 

in Suffolk.  An agreement was signed in February and the REF received the payment in March 

2024.  Installation of the underground pipeline will begin this summer and continue through 2024 

with uninterrupted access by TCC’s faculty, staff, and students.  Expansion of the Skilled Trades 

Academy is underway, which will add 13,000 square feet to the existing 20,000 square feet 

currently in use.  Renovations are anticipated to be completed in early June of 2024.  

 

10.  Discussion & Approval of Action Item(s) Removed from the Consent Agenda 

Nothing to report.  

 

11.  President’s Report 

a. Proposed 2023-24 Emeritus Appointment Resolutions.  Dr. Conston appointed one faculty 

member and two classified staff to emeritus status, respectively: 

 

Teaching Faculty: 

• Ellyn Hodgis, Associate Professor of Radiography 



 

DRAFT 

 

  Meeting No. 338 

TCC Board 

  Page 5 

 

 

 Classified Staff: 

• Nancy Jones, Trainer and Instructor I 

• Gloria McKinney, Information Technology Specialist II 

 

 The appointments were vetted through the college’s formal policies and procedures 

 governing emeritus status and come with Dr. Conston’s endorsement.  On a motion by Dr. 

 Houston, seconded by Mr. Bynum, the board approved the appointments as presented. 

 

b. Spring Enrollment Update (w/ Mr. Aasen).  Spring 2024 Full-time Equivalent (FTE) 

enrollment declined -3.0% and student headcount decreased -4.8%.  Key metrics included: 

dual enrollment (-3.8%); first-time-in-college students (-16.4%); average credits high school 

(+5.1%); and average credits regular (+1.4%).  Registrations for Workforce Solutions 

decreased (-2.8%) in the 3rd quarter and (-32%) in FY 2024. Mr. Aasen presented a chart of 

the VCCS credit enrollment for Spring 2024, noting TCC’s declines in FTE enrollment -

3.0% and in student headcount -4.7%. Dr. Conston asked Dr. Campbell to share some 

initiatives the college has in place to get to a break-even point.  The college is offering a free 

SDV course for students who were planning to start in the Summer to come in the Fall. TCC 

was selected as an education partner for Amazon’s Career Choice program, providing 

Amazon’s hourly employees access to all TCC career and technical programs, as well as the 

college’s transfer programs that enable students to build a solid academic foundation and 

save on the cost of college.  

 

12.  Chair’s Report & Announcements 

a. Continuation of the Presidential Evaluation Process.  Ms. Clements noted that the board will 

receive information to complete the College Board’s assessment of the president’s 

performance.  Per section 2.15.4 of the College Board Policies & Procedures Manual, the 

president shall submit a self-evaluation to the board chair.  Ms. Clements will distribute the 

self-evaluation electronically to the full board and receive feedback and input by April 12.  

The board’s executive committee will meet with Dr. Conston to discuss her performance.  

The board will meet in closed session at the May 14 board meeting to finalize comments for 

the signed letter that will be forwarded to the Chancellor. 

 

b.   Appointment of Board Nominating Committee. Chairwoman Clements named Mr. Green as 

chair, Mr. Bynum, Mr. Crow, Dr. Sinclair, and Mr. Stakes to serve on the nominating 

committee.  She charged them to nominate officers as board chair and board vice chair for the 

period of 2022-24.  The committee will reference section 2.1 of the board’s Policies and 

Procedures Manual w/By-Laws in nominating candidates and to present their report at the 

May board meeting. 

 

 Announcements: 

 

➢ The Spring Commencement Exercise is scheduled for Monday, May 6 at 4:00 pm in 

the Chartway Arena in Norfolk.  Expect to receive the details from Ms. Johnson in 

early April. 

 



 

DRAFT 

 

  Meeting No. 338 

TCC Board 

  Page 6 

 

➢ The next board meeting is May 14 at 4:00 pm at the Visual Arts and Design Center in 

Norfolk. 

 

 

13.  Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the board, Ms. Clements adjourned the meeting 

at 5:42 p.m. 

 

                                                                        Respectfully submitted, 

                                                            

                                                             

      ________________________________ 

      Marcia Conston, Ph.D. 

      Secretary to the Board 

 

 

 

APPROVAL 

 

 

________________________ 

Lynn B. Clements 

Chair     









































TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 
AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING:   

COMMITTEE:  

AGENDA ITEM: 

May 14, 2024 

Curriculum and Student Development Committee 

New Program Request for Career Studies Certificate, Electrified 
Powertrains Technician 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND: 

TCC offers several Automotive Technology programs. TCC faculty and the Pathway 
Dean, in collaboration with the Toyota Technician Training and Education Network (T-
TEN), determined that a new program was necessary as the College must continually 
adapt to prepare students for the diagnosis and repair of current and future vehicle 
systems. The Career Studies Certificate in Electrified Powertrains Technician will 
prepare students to service, repair, and diagnose automotive high voltage systems. It 
will also prepare students for the Automotive Service Excellence (ASE) certification 
exams in Electrical Systems (A6), Engine Performance (A8), and Light Duty 
Hybrid/Electrical vehicles (L3).  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

That the College Board approves the initiation of the Career Studies Certificate in 
Electrified Powertrains Technician.  

STAFF LIAISON: 
Dr. Michelle Woodhouse
Vice President for Academic Affairs and Chief Academic Officer 
m  w o o d h o u s e @  t  c c . e d u  
757-822-1061

mailto:mwoodhouse@tcc.edu


= 

Name: ________________________________________

SIS Empl ID: __________________________________

Date Entered TCC: ______________________________

Counselor: ____________________________________

Official Curriculum Guide 

The Electrified Powertrains Career Studies Certificate is designed to prepare students to safely service, repair, and diagnose 
automotive high voltage systems. The program includes preparation for the ASE certification exams in Electrical Systems (A6), Engine 
Performance (A8), and Light Duty Hybrid/Electrical vehicles (L3).  

A valid driver's license is required for admission into any Automotive Technology program. Students must visit the Regional 
Automotive Center prior to registration. Students are advised to consult with the program faculty prior to admission into the 
program. 

Students must successfully complete the Automotive Maintenance and Light Repair (MLR) Career Studies Certificate before selecting 
this program. 

Career Studies Certificate: Electrified Powertrains Technician (XXX-XX-XX) 

Classification 
Course No.

Course Title Credits Prerequisites When Taken Grade

Semester 1 

Co-Requisites

___________NoneAUT 249 (  )Advanced Electrical Systems 5 AUT 149

___________NoneAUT 255 (  )Advanced Engine Performance 5 AUT 155

Semester Total 10

Classification 
Course No.

Course Title Credits Prerequisites When Taken Grade

Semester 2 

Co-Requisites

___________NoneAUT XXX (  )Automotive Drivetrains (NEW) 
COURSE)

5 AUT 149

___________NoneAUT 233 (  )Hybrid/Electrical Vehicle 
Technology 

3 AUT-249, AUT 255 

Semester Total 8

Total Minimum Credits 18 

03/05/2024

Tidewater Community College Page 1 of  1 Catalog 2023 - 2024



TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING:   May 14, 2024 

COMMITTEE:  Curriculum and Student Development Committee 

AGENDA ITEM: Discontinuance of the Career Studies Certificate in 
Restaurant Management  

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The design, integrity, quality, and viability of the college’s curricula are fundamental 
academic responsibilities. To fulfill these responsibilities requires the steadfast 
commitment of faculty (via the curriculum committee), program advisory committees, 
academic deans, provosts, and the chief academic officer.   
 
Within this context, the academic staff proposes discontinuance of the Career Studies 
Certificate in Restaurant Management. The need to discontinue this program was 
prompted by the lack of student interest and faculty expertise. The proposal has been 
reviewed and recommended by the supervising dean, the curriculum committee, and the 
chief academic officer. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the College Board approves the discontinuance of the Career Studies Certificate in 
Restaurant Management.  
 
 
 
 
STAFF LIAISON: 
 
Dr. Michelle Woodhouse 
Vice President for Academic Affairs & Chief Academic Officer 
mwoodhouse@tcc.edu 
757-822-1061 
 

mailto:mwoodhouse@tcc.edu


 

Name: ________________________________________ 

SIS Empl ID: __________________________________ 

Date Entered TCC: ______________________________ 

Counselor: ____________________________________ 

Official Curriculum Guide 

The Career Studies Certificate in Restaurant Management prepares students for entry-level management positions in foodservice 
operations such as restaurants, catering companies, hotels, and resorts. Instruction consists of menu planning, staff management 
and supervision, food purchasing, and food and beverage service management.   

Career Studies Certificate: Restaurant Management(221-241-60) 

Classification 
Course No. 

Course Title Credits Prerequisites When Taken Grade 
Semester 1 

Co-Requisites 

___________ None HRI 109 (   ) Introduction to Restaurant 
Management    

2 None 

___________ None CUL 134 (   ) Food and Beverage Service 
Management   

3 HRI 158 
(prerequisite or 

 ___________ None HRI 158 (   ) Sanitation and Safety   3 None 
___________ None HRI 215 (   ) Food Purchasing   3 Eligible to enroll in 

MTH 130 or higher 
___________ HRI 109 for 

students in 
Restaurant 
Management 
Program 

HRI 241 (   ) Supervision in the Hospitality 
Industry   

3 HRI 154 for students 
in Hospitality 
Management 
Program 

Semester Total 14 

Classification 
Course No. 

Course Title Credits Prerequisites When Taken Grade 
Semester 2 

Co-Requisites 

___________ None HRI 224 (   ) Recipe and Menu Management   3 Eligible to enroll in 
MTH 130 or higher 

___________ None HRI 245 (   ) Labor Cost Control   3 Eligible to enroll in 
MTH 130 or higher 

___________ None CUL 259 (   ) Beverage Management    3 Eligible to enroll in 
MTH 130 or higher 

___________ None CUL 290 (   ) Coordinated Internship in 
Restaurant Management   

5 Instructor permission 

Semester Total 14 

Total Minimum Credits 28 

03/21/2024 
Tidewater Community College Page 1 of  1 Catalog 2023 - 2024 



TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING:  May 14, 2024 

COMMITTEE: Finance & Facilities Committee 

AGENDA ITEM: TCC Policy 3201, Naming of College Facilities 
 

BACKGROUND:  

The College has updated Policy 3201 – Naming of College Facilities.   

TCC Policy 3201 Rev. 1, Naming of College Facilities 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

That the College Board approves the revised TCC Policy 3201, Naming of College 
Facilities as presented.  Once approved, the policy will be sent to the Chancellor for 
approval. 

STAFF LIAISON: 

Heather Hardiman 
Vice President for Administration and 
  Chief Financial Officer 
hhardiman@tcc.edu  
757-822-1738 

https://www.tcc.edu/wp-content/uploads/archive/policies/tcc-policy-3201.pdf
mailto:hhardiman@tcc.edu










TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING:  May 14, 2024 

COMMITTEE: Finance & Facilities Committee 

AGENDA ITEM: Proposed 2024-25 Local Fund Budgets 
 

BACKGROUND:  

The Commonwealth of Virginia operates on a July 1st fiscal year. 

The college’s Local Fund Budgets consists of four parts—the Student Activities Budget, 
which draws its revenue predominantly from the Student Activity Fee; the Institutional 
Auxiliary Budget, which draws its revenue from the Institutional Auxiliary Fee; the Student 
Center Budget, which draws its revenue predominantly from the Auxiliary Capital Fee; 
and the Auxiliary Services Budget, which draws its revenue predominantly from 
Commissions and includes Municipal Support. 

The board acts on these budgets annually at its May meeting. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

That the College Board approves the proposed Fiscal Year 2024-25 Local Fund Budgets 
as presented. 

STAFF LIAISON: 

Heather Hardiman 
Vice President for Administration and  
  Chief Financial Officer 
hhardiman@tcc.edu  
757-822-1738 

mailto:hhardiman@tcc.edu


 Budget Anticipated Proposed Budget
2024 2024 2025

Fund Balance 07/01 1,927,661$              1,927,661$              1,785,393$              

 I.     Revenues
        A.  Student Activity Fee 724,743$                 724,743$                 751,144$                 
        B.  ID Card Replacements 3,000                       4,000                       4,000                       
Total Revenues 727,743$                 728,743$                 755,144$                 

Total Resources (Revenue & Fund Bal.) 2,655,404$              2,656,404$              2,540,537$              

II.     Expenditures
        A.  College-wide Student Activities

1.  Student Government Association 6,000$                     4,000$                     6,000$                     
2.  Programming 50,000                     50,000                     50,000                     
3.  Student Organizations 10,000                     10,000                     10,000                     
4.  Contingency Fund 6,000                       6,000                       6,000                       
5.  Gear Up to Lead 10,000                     10,000                     10,000                     
6.  VCCS Leadership Conference 10,000                     10,000                     10,000                     
7.  Visual Arts & Design Center 3,100                       2,000                       3,100                       
8.  Student Resource & Empowerment Center 11,000                     4,000                       11,000                     
9.  Virtual Student Center 8,000                       8,000                       8,000                       

 10.  Student Honors Event 15,000                     15,000                     15,000                     
 11.  Literary Festival 5,000                       5,000                       5,000                       

Subtotal--College-wide Student Activities 134,100$                 124,000$                 134,100$                 

       B.  College-wide Learning Assistance Fund
1. College-wide Learning Assistance Fund 77,793$                   80,127$                   85,000$                   

Subtotal--College-wide Learning Assistance Fund 77,793$                   80,127$                   85,000$                   

       C.  College-wide Contingency Fund
1.  College-wide Contingency Fund 15,000$                   6,000$                     15,000$                   

Subtotal--College-wide Contingency Fund 15,000$                   6,000$                     15,000$                   

       D.  Deans' Contingency Fund
1.  College-wide Deans' Contingency Fund 20,500$                   20,500$                   20,500$                   

Subtotal--Deans' Contingency Fund 20,500$                   20,500$                   20,500$                   

        E.  Student Activities Identification System
1.  Equipment, Software, and Supplies 36,000$                   36,000$                   36,000$                   

Subtotal--Student Activities Identification System 36,000$                   36,000$                   36,000$                   

Total Expenditures 283,393$                 266,627$                 290,600$                 

III.   Transfers

       A.  Transfer to Student Center Budget 604,384$                 604,384$                 622,516$                 
Subtotal--Transfers 604,384$                 604,384$                 622,516$                 

Anticipated Fund Balance 06/30 1,767,627$              1,785,393$              1,627,422$              
 VPAF 04/24/24

TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE
 PROPOSED STUDENT ACTIVITIES BUDGET

FY 2025



TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
PROPOSED STUDENT ACTIVITIES BUDGET 

Narrative Justification 
FY 2025 

 
I. REVENUES 

The revenues for the Student Activities Budget are based on a projection of 10,228 
annualized FTES.   
A. Student Activity Fee – A fee of $2.55 per credit hour, up to a maximum of 15 credits, is 

assessed to all students, except those under special arrangement contracts. 
B. ID Card Replacements – A fee of $10 is charged for replacement student ID cards. TCC 

requires all students to carry their TCC ID card while on campus. 
 
II. EXPENDITURES 

A. College-wide Student Activities – Student Activities offices provide holistic student 
development and programming inclusive of, but not limited to, Student Government 
Association, student organizations, engagement, volunteerism, community outreach, 
leadership development, marketing, recreation, E-sports, diversity, and cultural inclusion 
that has been approved by the Dean of Campus Life. Student activities professionals utilize 
local funds to support the needs of the student population, promote student engagement 
and retention, and support the college’s strategic plan initiatives.  
1. Student Government Association – Funding is used for stipends, apparel, 

programming support, recruitment and retention, office supplies, campus-wide 
initiatives, and additional support as deemed appropriate and approved by the Dean of 
Campus Life. 

2. Programming – Funding is provided for planned student life programming which 
includes, but is not limited to, life skills, social integration, self-management, wellness, 
social responsibility, cultural awareness, diversity, inclusion, student and community 
engagement, enrichment, volunteerism, and leadership development. Programming 
support needs include, but are not limited to, speakers, presenters, entertainment, 
marketing, promotional materials, and apparel. 

3. Student Organizations – Funding is used for leadership development, club and 
organization support, conferences, training, speakers, enrichment, honor societies, 
campus initiatives, community outreach, student engagement, honorariums, and 
recognitions. 

4. Contingency Fund – Funding is provided to fund special initiatives, technology and 
equipment upkeep, and other miscellaneous expenses that may emerge during the fiscal 
year. 

5. Gear Up to Lead – Funding is provided for the Student Leadership program. 
6. VCCS Leadership Conference – Funding is provided for students to attend the VCCS 

Leadership Conference. 



7. Visual Arts & Design Center – Funds are provided for special art exhibitions, 
honoraria, refreshments for opening receptions, and other college-wide activities of the 
Visual Arts & Design Center. 

8. Student Resource & Empowerment Center – Funds support college-wide programs 
and services focused on issues critical to the success of all students, but specifically 
populations of underserved students to persist in their academic pursuits.  

9. Virtual Student Center – Funding is provided to support the Virtual Student Center 
special initiatives and programming. Initiatives and programming support include, but 
is not limited to, speakers, presenters, entertainment, marketing, promotional materials, 
and apparel. 

10. Student Honors Event – Funding to support an annual academic event to celebrate 
students’ academic achievements. 

11. Literary Festival – Funds to support the annual Literary Festival. 
B. College-wide Learning Assistance Fund – Provides salaries for administrative support, 

tutors, and supplemental instructors to assist students experiencing academic difficulties 
and operating funds for tutoring centers on each campus.    

C. College-wide Contingency Fund – Provides the campus with funding to support campus 
student activities. Such activities include lecture series, speakers, and special events for 
current or prospective students, and public information related to such events. 

D. Deans’ Contingency Fund – Provides funding for the campus deans to support student 
success activities. These include welcome receptions for various student groups, student 
and staff recognitions, professional development, travel and other related expenses, 
campus improvements, meetings with students, staff and student workshops and retreats, 
and various student retention efforts.   

E. Student Activities Identification System – These funds are used for supplies and the 
CBORD software maintenance agreement for the college-wide student identification 
system.      
 

III. TRANSFERS – Funds are transferred to the Student Center budget to cover the costs of 
campus student activities and student ID personnel.    



TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE
PROPOSED INSTITUTIONAL AUXILIARY BUDGET

 
Budget Anticipated Proposed Budget

2024 2024 2025
Fund Balance 07/01 18,453,959$      18,453,959$      16,916,347$           

 I.     Revenues
        A.  Institutional Fee 2,074,753$        2,074,753$        2,150,335$             
        B.  Student Parking Sales 25,000               10,000               11,000                   
        C.  Student HRT Pass Sales 15,000               17,500               18,000                   
        D.  Miscellaneous Revenue 1,000                 21,000               23,000                   
Total Revenues 2,115,753$        2,123,253$        2,202,335$             

Total Resources (Revenue & Fund Bal.) 20,569,712$      20,577,212$      19,118,682$           

II.     Expenditures
        A.  Chesapeake Campus Parking Garage - Debt Service 1,639,240$        1,639,240$        1,636,997$             
        B.  Chesapeake Campus Parking Lot - Debt Service 332,625             332,625             329,875                  
        C.  Chesapeake Parking Garage Operating Expenses
              1. Personnel 70,000                   
              2. Utilities 9,000                 11,500               12,000                   
              3. Security 10,000               10,000                   
              4. General Maintenance 75,000               35,000               75,000                   
        D.  College-wide Parking Lot Improvements 250,000             250,000             250,000                  
        E.  Hampton Roads Transit (HRT) Passes 67,500               67,500               70,000                   
        F.  Student Parking 65,000               15,000               65,000                   
        G. College-wide Wayfinding 3,000,000          1,300,000          2,000,000               
        H.  Security Camera Implementation 225,000             10,000               530,000                  
Total Expenditures 5,673,365$        3,660,865$        5,048,872$             

Anticipated Fund Balance 06/30 14,896,347$      16,916,347$      14,069,810$           
VPAF 04/24/24

FY 2025



 

TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
PROPOSED INSTITUTIONAL AUXILIARY BUDGET 

Narrative Justification 
FY 2025 

 
I. REVENUES 

The revenues for the Institutional Auxiliary Budget are based on a projection of 10,228 
annualized FTES.   
A. Institutional Fee – A fee of $7.30 per credit hour, up to a maximum of 15 credits, is 

assessed to all students, except those under special arrangement contracts.     
B. Student Parking Sales – Revenue from the sale of the City of Norfolk parking garage 

spaces to students on the Norfolk Campus. Student cost is at a reduced rate because the 
Institutional Fee subsidizes the total cost. 

C. Student HRT Pass Sales – Revenue from the sale of HRT passes to students at all 
campuses.  These passes are sold to students at a reduced rate because the Institutional Fee 
subsidizes the total cost. 

D. Miscellaneous Revenue – Revenue from leasing of the TCC parking lots or garage. 
 
II. EXPENDITURES 

A. Chesapeake Campus Parking Garage – Debt Service – Funds for the debt service of the 
Chesapeake Campus Parking Garage. Anticipated Bond payment end date September 
2032. 

B. Chesapeake Campus Parking Lot – Debt Service – Funds for the debt service of the 
Chesapeake Campus parking lot. Anticipated Bond payment end date September 2024.   

C. Chesapeake Campus Parking Garage – Operating Expenses – Funds for general 
maintenance, preventative maintenance, repair, security services, custodial, and the utilities 
associated with the Chesapeake Campus garage.  

D. College-wide Parking Lot Improvements – Funds to provide parking lot and roadway 
improvements on three campuses with such facilities.  

E. Hampton Roads Transit (HRT) Passes – Cost to purchase the GoSemester Passes from 
HRT to provide transportation services to students, including light rail, bus, and ferry.  

F. Student Parking – Cost of parking for students in City of Norfolk Parking Garage.   
G. College-wide Wayfinding – Costs to improve and enhance signage across all campuses 

and the district office. 
H. Security Camera Implementation – Cost to design and implement security cameras 

across all campuses. 



TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE
PROPOSED STUDENT CENTER BUDGET  

FY 2025

  Budget Anticipated Proposed Budget
2024 2024 2025

Fund Balance 07/01 15,877,758$            15,877,758$            12,349,177$            

 I.     Revenues
A. Auxiliary Capital Fee 5,661,900$              5,661,900$              5,891,328$              
B. Transfer-In from Student Activities Budget 604,384                   604,384                   622,516                   
C. Food Service Revenue 7,950                       1,500                       9,000                       
D. Miscellaneous Revenue 75,000                     20,000                     20,000                     

Total Revenues 6,349,234$              6,287,784$              6,542,844$              

Total Resources (Revenue & Fund Balance) 22,226,992$            22,165,542$            18,892,021$            

II.     Expenditures
A. Bond Debt Service

1.  Student Center - Norfolk Campus 1,140,474$              1,140,474$              1,136,224$              
2.  Student Center - Chesapeake Campus 1,213,249                1,213,249                1,210,324                
3.  Student Center - Portsmouth Campus 1,217,773                1,217,773                1,203,119                
4.  Student Center - Virginia Beach Campus 1,734,205                1,734,205                1,725,009                

Subtotal--Bond Debt Service 5,305,701$              5,305,701$              5,274,676$              

B. Norfolk Student Center
1.  General Operations

a.  Personnel 349,995$                 290,000$                 360,495$                 
b.  Operating Expenses 25,000                     25,000                     25,000                     

Subtotal--General Operations 374,995$                 315,000$                 385,495$                 

 2.  Facility Operations
a.  Utilities 105,600$                 122,545$                 130,000$                 
b.  Security 115,000                   75,000                     115,000                   
c.  Custodial
     1. Personnel 120,000                   96,000                     123,600                   
     2. Expenditures 12,000                     10,000                     12,000                     
d.  General Maintenance
     1. Personnel 101,000                   101,000                   104,030                   
     2. Expenditures 213,000                   100,000                   130,000                   
e.  Insurance 8,200                       8,733                       9,933                       
f.  Network & Telecommunications 35,942                     35,942                     35,942                     

Subtotal--Facility Operations 710,742$                 549,220$                 660,505$                 

3.  Food Services
     a.  Equipment Mtce. & Replacement 8,500$                     2,000$                     20,000$                   
Subtotal--Food Services 8,500$                     2,000$                     20,000$                   

Subtotal--Norfolk Student Center 1,094,237$              866,220$                 1,066,000$              

C. Chesapeake Student Center
1.  General Operations

a.  Personnel 349,694$                 300,000$                 360,185$                 
b.  Operating Expenses 25,000                     25,000                     25,000                     

Subtotal--General Operations 374,694$                 325,000$                 385,185$                 



  Budget Anticipated Proposed Budget
2024 2024 2025

2. Facility Operations
a.  Utilities 115,500$                 130,000$                 140,000$                 
b.  Security 80,000                     80,000                     80,000                     
c.  Custodial
     1. Personnel 125,500                   120,000                   129,265                   
     2. Expenditures 10,000                     8,000                       10,000                     
d.  General Maintenance
     1. Personnel 95,000                     89,000                     97,850                     
     2. Expenditures 124,000                   100,000                   124,000                   
e.  Insurance 9,000                       9,586                       10,786                     
f.  Network & Telecommunications 34,686                     34,686                     34,686                     

Subtotal--Facility Operations 593,686$                 571,272$                 626,587$                 

3.  Food Services
     a.  Equipment Mtce. & Replacement 10,000$                   2,000$                     15,000$                   
Subtotal--Food Services 10,000$                   2,000$                     15,000$                   

Subtotal--Chesapeake Student Center 978,380$                 898,272$                 1,026,772$              

D. Portsmouth Student Center
1.  General Operations

a.  Personnel 352,364$                 323,500$                 362,935$                 
b.  Operating Expenses 25,000                     2,000                       25,000                     

Subtotal--General Operations 377,364$                 325,500$                 387,935$                 

 2. Facility Operations
a.  Utilities 101,200$                 70,000$                   75,000$                   
b.  Security 90,000                     80,000                     90,000                     
c.  Custodial
     1. Personnel 122,000                   78,000                     125,660                   
     2. Expenditures 12,500                     8,000                       12,500                     
d.  General Maintenance
     1. Personnel 95,000                     97,250                     97,850                     
     2. Expenditures 94,000                     94,000                     94,000                     
e.  Insurance 9,000                       9,391                       10,591                     
f.  Network & Telecommunications 40,045                     40,045                     40,045                     

Subtotal--Facility Operations 563,745$                 476,686$                 545,646$                 

3.  Food Services
     a.  Equipment Mtce. & Replacement 10,000$                   2,000$                     4,000$                     
Subtotal--Food Services 10,000$                   2,000$                     4,000$                     

Subtotal--Portsmouth Student Center 951,109$                 804,186$                 937,581$                 

 E.  Virginia Beach Student Center
1.  General Operations

a.  Personnel 456,932$                 331,000$                 470,640$                 
b.  Operating Expenses 40,000                     25,000                     40,000                     

Subtotal--General Operations 496,932$                 356,000$                 510,640$                 



  Budget Anticipated Proposed Budget
2024 2024 2025

 2. Facility Operations
a.  Utilities 54,000$                   50,000$                   54,000$                   
b.  Security 110,000                   80,000                     110,000                   
c.  Custodial
     1. Personnel 182,000                   150,000                   187,460                   
     2. Expenditures 15,000                     7,000                       15,000                     
d.  General Maintenance
     1. Personnel 105,000                   150,000                   108,150                   
     2. Expenditures 112,500                   90,000                     112,500                   
e.  Insurance 13,300                     14,096                     15,200                     
f.  Network & Telecommunications 35,890                     35,890                     35,890                     

Subtotal--Facility Operations 627,690$                 576,986$                 638,200$                 

3.  Food Services
     a.  Equipment Mtce. & Replacement 12,000$                   9,000$                     12,000$                   
Subtotal--Food Services 12,000$                   9,000$                     12,000$                   

Subtotal--Virginia Beach Student Center 1,136,622$              941,986$                 1,160,840$              

Total Expenditures 9,466,049$              8,816,365$              9,465,868$              

III. Capital Maintenance Reserve 1,000,000$              1,000,000$              1,000,000$              

Anticipated Fund Balance 06/30 11,760,944$            12,349,177$            8,426,153$              
VPAF 04/24/24

Capital Maintenance Reserve Fund
 FY14-FY25 12,500,000$            



TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
PROPOSED STUDENT CENTER BUDGET  

Narrative Justification  
FY 2025 

 
I. REVENUES 

The revenues for the Student Center Budget are based on a projection of 10,228 
annualized FTEs.  
A. Auxiliary Capital Fee – A fee is assessed to all students up to a maximum of 15 credit 

hours. The fee is $20.00 per credit hour. 
B. Transfer-In from Student Activities Budget – This transfer reflects the funding of 

positions from the Student Activities budget.  
C. Food Service Revenue – Estimated revenue from the college’s food service contracts.   
D. Miscellaneous Revenue – Revenue generated from rental of student center facilities and 

other activities at the student centers.  
 

II. EXPENDITURES  
A. Bond Debt Service – Principal and interest payments due on VCBA Pooled Bonds used 

to finance the student centers. Anticipated last bond payment dates – Norfolk and 
Portsmouth, September 2030, Virginia Beach and Chesapeake, September 2031. 

B-E. Norfolk, Chesapeake, Portsmouth, & Virginia Beach Student Centers –  
1. General Operations  

a. Personnel – Staffing costs for Norfolk, Chesapeake, Portsmouth, and Virginia 
Beach student centers, including costs for student activities personnel and student 
identification personnel.    

b. Operating Expenses – Funding for general operating expenses such as office 
supplies, travel, professional development, equipment repairs, etc.   

2. Facility Operations  
a. Utilities – Utilities services for the student centers. Utilities include electrical, 

natural gas, water, and sewer.  
b. Security – Unarmed security services for the student centers. The services are 

provided under the college’s security contract. Additional coverage is provided for 
special events and officers assigned elsewhere on campus are available to respond 
to situations, if necessary. Also includes additional funds for the cost of repairs and 
replacement of access controls at the student centers.  

c. Custodial – Personnel costs, consumable materials for housecleaning, and trash 
and garbage disposal services for the student centers.  

d. General Maintenance – Personnel costs, consumable materials, and contract 
services to maintain the student centers’ mechanical, electrical, and other building 
systems. Additional funds are included for anticipated maintenance and repairs.  

e. Insurance – Estimated cost of insurance for the student centers.  



f. Network & Telecommunications – Estimated cost of ongoing network and 
telecommunications support for the student centers.   

3. Food Services – Cost of maintenance, repair, and replacement of food service 
equipment. 

 
III. Capital Maintenance Reserve – Funds approximating two percent of the cost of the student 

center buildings will be transferred to a maintenance reserve account to fund future costs. 



Budget Anticipated Proposed Budget
2024 2024 2025

Fund Balance   07/01 12,135,450$        12,135,450$        12,652,461$             

 I.  Revenues 
        A.  Bookstore 750,000$             750,000$             525,000$                  
        B.  Vending

1.  Exclusive Beverage Contract 60,000                 81,000                 80,000                      
2.  Vending - CRH 26,000                 23,000                 25,000                      

        C.  Municipal Support 18,000                 18,000                 18,000                      
        D.  Interest Earnings 600,000               1,500,000            800,000                    
        E.  Miscellaneous Revenue 400                      600                      500                           
Total Revenues 1,454,400$          2,372,600$          1,448,500$               

Total Resources (Revenue & Fund Bal.) 13,589,850$        14,508,050$        14,100,961$             

II.    Expenditures

       A.  Operating Expenses
             1.  Banking Costs 6,000$                 700$                    1,000$                      
             2.  Miscellaneous Expenses 1,000                   1,000                   1,000                        
             3.  Joint-Use Library Food Service Equipment 1,840                   1,840                        
Subtotal--Operating Expenses 8,840$                 1,700$                 3,840$                      

       B.  Faculty/Staff Parking 300,000$             350,000$             400,000$                  
       C.  College Community Events 30,000$               30,000$               30,000$                    
       D.  Financial Aid Adjustments 10,000$               10,000$               10,000$                    

       E.  Childcare Subsidy
             1.  Norfolk 120,000$             30,000$               50,000$                    
             2.  Portsmouth 120,000               75,000                      
             3.  Virginia Beach 120,000                    
Subtotal--Child Care Subsidy 240,000$             30,000$               245,000$                  

       F.  College-wide Athletics
             1.  Personnel 100,000$             25,000$               300,000$                  
             2.  General Operating Costs 40,000                      
Subtotal--College-wide Athletics 100,000$             25,000$               340,000$                  

       G.  Auxiliary Service Operations
             1.  Personnel 199,314$             199,314$             205,293$                  
             2.  General Operating Costs 3,500                   8,000                   3,500                        
             3.  Equipment/Software/Installation  35,640                 10,000 35,640                      
             4.  StormCard Marketing 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                      
Subtotal--Auxiliary Service Operations 248,454$             227,314$             254,433$                  

       H.  Community Support
             1.  College Board 2,500$                 2,500$                 2,500$                      
             2.  President 15,000                 10,000                 15,000                      
             3.  Vice Presidents 
                  a. Vice President for Academic Affairs & Chief Academic Officer 6,000                   4,000                   6,000                        
                  b. Vice President for Administration & Chief Financial Officer 6,000                   5,000                   6,000                        
                  c. Vice President for Information Systems & Institutional Effectiveness 6,000                   3,000                   6,000                        
                  d. Vice President for Institutional Advancement 6,000                   6,000                   6,000                        
                  e. Vice President for Workforce Solutions 6,000                   1,000                   6,000                        
                  f.  Vice President for Student Affairs 6,000                   4,000                   6,000                        
                  g.  Associate Vice President for Human Resources 6,000                        

 TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE
PROPOSED AUXILIARY SERVICES BUDGET 

FY 2025



Budget Anticipated Proposed Budget
2024 2024 2025

             4.  Campus Deans
                  a.  Portsmouth 6,000                   5,000                   6,000                        
                  b.  Virginia Beach 12,000                 4,000                   12,000                      
                  c.  Chesapeake 6,000                   4,000                   6,000                        
                  d.  Norfolk 6,000                   5,000                   6,000                        
             5.  Community Outreach 27,000                 6,000                   27,000                      
             6.  Contingencies 3,500                   3,500                        
Subtotal--Community Support 114,000$             59,500$               120,000$                  

      I.  Deans' Discretionary Aid Fund
             1.  Chesapeake 6,000$                 1,000$                 6,000$                      
             2.  Norfolk 6,000                   2,500                   6,000                        
             3.  Portsmouth 6,000                   1,200                   6,000                        
             4.  Virginia Beach 11,000                 4,000                   11,000                      
Subtotal--Deans' Discretionary Aid Fund 29,000$               8,700$                 29,000$                    

Subtotal--Expenditures 980,294$             687,214$             1,432,273$               

III.  Student Financial Assistance
      A.  TCC Scholarships & Awards
            1.  Art Scholarships 15,000$               10,000$               15,000$                    
            2.  International Student Scholarships 15,500                 10,000                 15,500                      
            3.  Culinary Match Program 3,000                   3,000                   3,000                        
            4.  Martin Luther King Scholarship 5,576                   5,576                   5,743                        
            5.  Military Scholarships 28,103                 7,500                   28,103                      
            6.  ROTC Scholarships 13,489                 2,000                   13,489                      
            7.  High School Scholarships
                 a.  Chesapeake 66,096                 57,000                 68,079                      
                      1. LaVonne P. Ellis Scholarship 11,121                 11,121                 11,455                      
                      2. Terri N. Thompson Scholarship 11,121                 11,121                 11,455                      
                 b.  Norfolk 43,704                 22,000                 45,015                      
                      1. John T. Kavanaugh Scholarship 11,151                 11,151                 11,486                      
                      2. John D. Padgett Scholarship 11,151                 11,151                 11,486                      
                 c.  Portsmouth 21,132                 16,000                 21,766                      
                      1. Lee B. Armistead Scholarship 11,151                 11,151                 11,486                      
                 d.  Suffolk (Northern) 11,151                 11,486                      
                 e.  Virginia Beach 88,668                 55,000                 91,328                      
                      1. Stanley Waranch Scholarship 11,151                 11,151                 11,486                      
                      2. Dorcas T. Helfant-Browning Scholarship 11,151                 11,151                 11,486                      
                      3. Thomas H. Wilson Scholarship 11,151                 11,151                 11,486                      
                      4. Cynthia S. Free 11,151                 11,151                 11,486                      
            8.  Dual Enrolled Scholarships
                      1. Chesapeake 5,700                   
                      2. Norfolk 5,700                   
                      3. Portsmouth 5,700                   
                      4. Virginia Beach 5,700                   
            9.  L.E.A.P. Scholarships 750,000               750,000               850,000                    
                 a. L.E.A.P. Book Scholarships 200,000               100,000               

   10.  College-wide Scholarships 77,000                 30,000                 77,000                      
   11.  Summer Camp Scholarships 35,000                      

Subtotal--TCC Scholarships & Awards 1,461,518$          1,168,375$          1,383,816$               

Total Expenditures & Student Financial Assistance 2,441,812$          1,855,589$          2,816,090$               

Anticipated Fund Balance  06/30 11,148,038$        12,652,461$        11,284,871$             
VPAF 04/24/24



 

TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
PROPOSED AUXILIARY SERVICES BUDGET 

Narrative Justification 
FY 2025 

 
I.  REVENUES 

A. Bookstore – Includes sales commissions and sign-on bonus from the new bookstore 
contract.   

B. Vending – Commissions from vending sales at all four campuses and the District Office.   
C. Municipal Support – Contributions from the cities of Norfolk, Portsmouth, and Virginia 

Beach.    
D. Interest Earnings – Interest earnings are calculated on a $51.5 million average investment. 
E. Miscellaneous Revenue – Miscellaneous income from expired StormCard plans and other 

miscellaneous receipts. 
 
II. EXPENDITURES 

A. Operating Expenses – Cost of bank fees, check stock, credit card fees, miscellaneous 
service fees, etc.  

B. Faculty/Staff Parking – Cost of faculty/staff parking in Norfolk, including parking for 
adjunct faculty and visitors.   

C. College Community Events – Funds to sponsor events to enhance the spirit of community 
among the college’s faculty and staff.   

D. Financial Aid Adjustments – Funding for financial aid adjustments resulting from 
administrative errors or similar circumstances.    

E. Childcare Subsidy – Funding to assist students with financial need for the cost of childcare 
on the Norfolk and Portsmouth campuses. Also includes the cost to build-out the Virginia 
Beach campus center and subsidy costs for Childcare Center operations. 

F. College-wide Athletics – Costs to support the college-wide athletics program. 
G. Auxiliary Service Operations 

1. Personnel – Salaries and benefits for the college’s Auxiliary Services personnel.    
2. General Operating Costs – Funds for training, office supplies, travel, and other 

miscellaneous expenses for Auxiliary Services personnel.  

3. Equipment/Software/Installation – Funds to support the college’s StormCard system.  
Funds are included for equipment, software, and installation of data lines.   

4. StormCard Marketing – Funds used each year for promotional purposes. 
H. Community Support   

1. College Board – Funds for expenses of Board meetings and other Board related 
expenses. 

2., 3., & 4. President, Vice Presidents, and Campus Deans – Discretionary funds for hosting 
college-wide and/or required regional meetings for various administrators and ad hoc 



 

committees; luncheon and dinner meetings with various city and business officials; 
purchase of refreshments for meetings hosted at TCC; memberships in local and 
regional organizations to promote the college. 

5. Community Outreach – Cost of attending functions sponsored by various civic 
organizations, sponsorships, and other community outreach activities.   

6. Contingencies – Funds to support additional obligations of the Board. 
I. Deans’ Discretionary Aid Fund – Funds to assist students with emergency financial needs 

and enable them to attend classes at Tidewater Community College.  The need must relate 
to the student’s cost of attendance at the college.  
 

III. STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
A. TCC Scholarships & Awards  

1. Art Scholarships – Awards to students with outstanding portfolios for study in fine arts, 
graphic design, or photography at TCC’s Visual Arts Center. Fifteen $1,000 
scholarships are available. 

2. International Student Scholarships – Awards to international students on a competitive 
basis. 

3. Culinary Match Program – Matching funds for Culinary Scholarships donated to the 
college. 

4. Martin Luther King Scholarship – An award to a student who exemplifies the values 
of Dr. Martin Luther King.   

5. Military Scholarships – Awards to dependents of servicepersons from each branch of 
the military.   

6. ROTC Scholarships – Awards to TCC students participating in the college's ROTC 
program through Old Dominion University and Norfolk State University. 

7. High School Scholarships – Awards to an outstanding high school senior in each of the 
public high schools in the cities of Chesapeake, Norfolk, Portsmouth, Northern Suffolk, 
and Virginia Beach. Additional scholarships are included for the Advanced 
Technology Center in Virginia Beach, and the Norfolk and Chesapeake Technology 
Centers.  The awards are for tuition and fees for the first and second years of attendance 
at TCC. 
The Stanley Waranch Scholarship will be awarded annually to a Virginia Beach high 
school graduate of the Advanced Technology Center.  The Local College Board named 
the scholarship in honor of Mr. Waranch on June 26, 2003, for his dedication and 
exemplary service to Tidewater Community College and those it serves. 
The John T. Kavanaugh Scholarship will be awarded annually to a Norfolk high school 
graduate who has participated in the Navy Junior Reserve Officer Training Corps 
program.  The Local College Board named the scholarship in honor of Mr. Kavanaugh 
on June 25, 2009, for his dedication and exemplary service to Tidewater Community 
College and those it serves. 
The Dorcas T. Helfant-Browning Scholarship will be awarded annually to a Virginia 
Beach high school graduate.  The Local College Board named the scholarship in honor 



 

of Ms. Helfant-Browning on June 25, 2009, for her dedication and exemplary service 
to Tidewater Community College and those it serves. 
The LaVonne P. Ellis Scholarship will be awarded annually to a Chesapeake high 
school graduate.  The Local College Board named the scholarship in honor of Ms. Ellis 
on June 26, 2012, for her dedication and exemplary service to Tidewater Community 
College and those it serves. 
The Thomas H. Wilson Scholarship will be awarded annually to a Virginia Beach high 
school graduate.  The Local College Board named the scholarship in honor of Mr. 
Wilson on September 10, 2013, for his dedication and exemplary service to Tidewater 
Community College and those it serves. 
The Lee B. Armistead Scholarship will be awarded annually to a Portsmouth high 
school graduate. The Local College Board named the scholarship in honor of Dr. 
Armistead on May 10, 2016, for his dedication and exemplary service to Tidewater 
Community College and those it serves. 
The Terri N. Thompson Scholarship will be awarded annually to a Chesapeake high 
school graduate. The Local College Board named the scholarship in honor of Ms. 
Thompson on January 14, 2019, for her dedication and exemplary service to Tidewater 
Community College and those it serves. 
The John D. Padgett Scholarship will be awarded annually to a Norfolk high school 
graduate.  The Local College Board named the scholarship in honor of Mr. Padgett on 
May 11, 2021, for his dedication and exemplary service to Tidewater Community 
College and those it serves. 
The Cynthia S. Free Scholarship will be awarded annually to a Virginia Beach high 
school graduate.  The Local College Board is naming the scholarship in honor of Ms. 
Free on May 9, 2023, for her dedication and exemplary service to Tidewater 
Community College and those it serves. 
Suffolk Scholarship will be awarded annually to Northern Suffolk outstanding high 
school seniors. 

8. Dual Enrolled Scholarships – Awards to high school students from the cities of 
Portsmouth, Virginia Beach, Chesapeake, and Norfolk.  This scholarship will no longer 
be awarded as the college is providing tuition free dual enrollment to Portsmouth, 
Norfolk, Chesapeake, and Virginia Beach public high school students. 

9. L.E.A.P. Scholarships – Awards to recent high school graduates who are enrolled in 
courses within the Learn Explore Accelerate Persevere (L.E.A.P.) Program. This 
scholarship will pay for tuition and fees as well as textbooks. 

9a. L.E.A.P. Book Scholarships – Awards to recent high school graduates who are 
enrolled in courses within the Learn Explore Accelerate Persevere (L.E.A.P.) 
Program to cover the cost of books.  This item has been combined with the L.E.A.P. 
scholarship. 

10. College-wide Scholarships - Awards to new first-time-in-college (FTIC) students or 
stop-out students to encourage academic success. 

11. Summer Camp Scholarships – Awards to community residents for the cost of the TCC 
Summer Camp program. 



TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING:  May 14, 2024 

COMMITTEE: Finance & Facilities Committee 

AGENDA ITEM: Skilled Trades Academy Lease Amendment 
 

BACKGROUND:  

Pursuant to the provisions of the initial 2018 lease, Landlord, Tidewater Community 
College Real Estate Foundation (TCC REF), leased to Tidewater Community College 
(TCC) 20,000 square feet of space comprised of the 20,000 square foot warehouse 
condominium (Units 6A through 6D) and shared common area surface parking.  

DISCUSSION: 

On July 19, 2022, the TCC REF purchased the condominium unit(s) 5A (Parcel ID# 0572-
0680), 5B (Parcel ID# 0572-0690), 5C (Parcel ID# 0572-0700), and 5D (Parcel ID# 0572-
0710) at 3303 Airline Boulevard. TCC REF proposes to lease TCC for ten years Units 5A 
through 5D consisting of a first floor of 12,000 square feet and a partial second floor of 
1,191 square feet. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

The request at this time is for approval to present the proposed lease amendment to the 
Chancellor for approval.  

STAFF LIAISON: 

Heather Hardiman 
Vice President for Administration and 
  Chief Financial Officer 
hhardiman@tcc.edu  
757-822-1738 

mailto:hhardiman@tcc.edu


VCCS Amendment to Deed of Lease 
5/15/2024  VCCS Lease 295-18-001 

[1] 
 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO DEED OF LEASE 
 

 This SECOND AMENDMENT TO DEED OF LEASE (this “Second Amendment”), dated 
and effective as of ____________, 2024, is made part of the Deed of Lease dated August 15, 2018, 
as amended by First Amendment to Deed of Lease dated as of June 14, 2021 (as amended by the 
“First Amendment” to the Lease), by and between TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
REAL ESTATE FOUNDATION, INC., a §501(c)(3) nonprofit non-stock Virginia corporation 
established to support the Tenant, as Grantor ("Landlord"), and the COMMONWEALTH OF 
VIRGINIA, TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE, ON BEHALF OF THE STATE 
BOARD FOR COMMUNITY COLLEGES, as Grantee ("Tenant"), pursuant to §§ 2.2-1149 
and 23.1-1002 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended. 
 

W I T N E S S E T H 
 
WHEREAS, by the Terms of the Lease, Landlord leases to Tenant an approximately 20,000 
square foot warehouse condominium with shared common area surface parking located at 3303 
Airline Boulevard, Units 6A through 6D, Portsmouth, VA 23701; and 
 
WHEREAS, the term of the lease expires August 14, 2028; and 
 
WHEREAS, on July 19, 2022 the Landlord purchased the condominium unit(s) 5A (Parcel ID# 
0572-0680), 5B (Parcel ID# 0572-0690), 5C (Parcel ID# 0572-0700) and 5D (Parcel ID# 0572-
0710) at 3303 Airline Boulevard, with a building consisting of a first floor of 12,000 square feet 
and a partial second floor of 1,191 square feet (hereafter collectively referred to as the “Expansion 
Premises”); and 
 
WHEREAS, after acquiring the Expansion Premises, Landlord will proceed to renovate the 
Expansion Premises with an expected substantial completion date of May 15, 2024 (the 
“Renovation Date”); and  
 
WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to amend the Lease to provide, among other things, an 
extension to the Lease term, the terms and conditions for the addition, and build out of, and rent 
for the Expansion Premises, as hereinafter set forth. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is agreed that the Lease is hereby amended as follows: 
 

1. Premises.   This section is amended to include the “Expansion Premises” as of the 
Renovation Date.  Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof replaces the former 
Lease Exhibit A.  The attached Exhibit A depicts the entire Premises. 
 

2. Rent.   Section 4 of the Lease is amended to include the following: 
(a) Base Rent.  Rent for the duration of the term shall include an additional amount for 

the Expansion Premises, estimated to be $170,000 per year, subject to change via 
terms of the loan and prorated based on the actual Renovation Date. See attached 



VCCS Amendment to Deed of Lease 
5/15/2024  VCCS Lease 295-18-001 

[2] 
 

Exhibit B – Rent Chart. 
(b) Ratification.  Except as amended herein, the Lease shall remain in full force and 

effect. 
 
This Amendment shall not be effective or binding unless and until signed by all parties, and all 
appropriate approvals are obtained pursuant to §§ 2.2-1149 and 23.1-1002 of the Code of Virginia 
(1950), as amended. 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally blank.  Signature pages follow.] 



VCCS Amendment to Deed of Lease 
5/15/2024  VCCS Lease 295-18-001 

[3] 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their signatures and seals.     
 
  LANDLORD: TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE REAL ESTATE 

FOUNDATION, INC. 
    a Virginia corporation 
 
 
    By: __________________________________________ 
     Prescott Sherrod, Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA  
CITY/COUNTY OF NORFOLK, VIRGINIA, to wit: 
 

The foregoing Second Amendment to Deed of Lease was acknowledged before me this 
______ day of _______, 2024 by Prescott Sherrod acting in his capacity as Chair, Board of 
Directors, of Tidewater Community College Real Estate Foundation, Inc. on behalf of the 
corporation. 
 
 My commission expires:  _____________________ 
 My registration number is: ____________________ 
 
 
 
            
      Notary Public  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



VCCS Amendment to Deed of Lease 
5/15/2024  VCCS Lease 295-18-001 

[4] 
 

 
 
 
 

TENANT: COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, TIDEWATER 
    COMMUNITY COLLEGE, ON BEHALF OF THE  
    STATE BOARD FOR COMMUNITY COLLEGES 
 
 

 By:          
        Marcia Conston, Ph.D., President  

 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
CITY OF NORFOLK, VIRGINIA, to wit: 
 

The foregoing Second Amendment to Deed of Lease was acknowledged before me this 
______day of _______, 2024 by Marcia Conston, Ph.D., acting in her capacity as President of 
TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE. 
 
 My commission expires:  _____________________ 
 My registration number is: ____________________ 
 
 
 
            
      Notary Public  
 
 
 
 
 
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
By: _______________________________________ 
 Senior Assistant Attorney General 
  



Exhibit A
Layout of Premises



Exhibit B
Annual Rents for Initial 5 yr. Term and First Option 5 yr. Term

Initial Term
August 15, 2021 to August 14, 2022

Initial Term
August 15, 2022 to August 14, 2023

Initial Term
August 15, 2023 to August 14, 2024

Initial Term
August 15, 2024 to August 14, 2025

Initial Term
August 15, 2025 to August 14, 2026

Initial Term Subtotal
August 2021 - August 2026

Units 6A - 6D Base Rent $176,000 $176,000 $176,000 $176,000 $176,000 $880,000

Units 6A - 6D Additional Rent $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $250,000

Total Rent - Units 6A - 6D $226,000 $226,000 $226,000 $226,000 $226,000 $1,130,000

Units 5A - 5D Base Rent $0 $0 $48,333 $145,000 $145,000 $338,333

Units 5A - 5D Additional Rent $0 $0 $8,334 $25,000 $25,000 $58,334

Total Rent - Units 5A - 5D $0 $0 $56,667 $170,000 $170,000 $396,667

Total Annual Rents $226,000 $226,000 $282,667 $396,000 $396,000 $1,526,667

* Amounts for Units 5A - 5D are prorated (4 of 12 months) in the August 2023 to August 2024 year.

First Option Term 
August 15, 2026 to August 14, 2027

First Option Term 
August 15, 2027 to August 14, 2028

First Option Term 
August 15, 2028 to August 14, 2029

First Option Term 
August 15, 2029 to August 14, 2030

First Option Term 
August 15, 2030 to August 14, 2031

Initial and First Option Total
August 2021 - August 2031

Units 6A - 6D Base Rent $76,000 $76,000 $76,000 $76,000 $76,000 $1,260,000

Units 6A - 6D Additional Rent $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $500,000

Total Rent - Units 6A - 6D $126,000 $126,000 $126,000 $126,000 $126,000 $1,760,000

Units 5A - 5D Base Rent $145,000 $145,000 $145,000 $145,000 $145,000 $1,063,333

Units 5A - 5D Additional Rent $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $183,334

Total Rent - Units 5A - 5D $170,000 $170,000 $170,000 $170,000 $170,000 $1,246,667

Total Annual Rents $296,000 $296,000 $296,000 $296,000 $296,000 $3,006,667



 

Resolution 

 

Whereas, William W. Crow was appointed by the Chesapeake City Council as a member of the 

Tidewater Community College Board on January 24, 2018, to fill an unexpired term through 

June 30, 2020; and was subsequently reappointed to the Board in July 2020; and, 

Whereas, William W. Crow provided his experience as a business person and community 

servant to his duties as a member of the Tidewater Community College Board; and, 

Whereas, William W. Crow served ably and diligently as a member of the Curriculum & 

Student Development Committee from 2017 to 2018 and the Advocacy Committee from 2018 to 

2024; and, 

Whereas, William W. Crow demonstrated devotion to all of his duties as a College Board 

member, including attendance at College Board meetings, Joint-Board Receptions, 

Groundbreakings, Community Outreach Initiatives and other college-related events and business; 

and, 

Whereas, William W. Crow was a passionate advocate for Tidewater Community College’s 

Center for Workforce Solutions and Skilled Trades Academy: 

Now, Therefore Be It Resolved that the Tidewater Community College Board and 

College President, on behalf of the faculty, staff, and students, recognize the outstanding 

contributions, dedication, and exemplary service of William W. Crow to the mission of 

Tidewater Community College and those it serves; and 

Be It Further Resolved that a copy of this resolution be given to William W. Crow with our 

warmest wishes, on this, the 10th day of September 2024 and that the resolution be recorded in 

the meeting minutes of the Tidewater Community College Board. 

 

 

  /s/       /s/                      

 Lynn B. Clements     Marcia Conston, Ph.D. 

 Chair, College Board     President  



TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING:  May 14, 2024 

COMMITTEE: Finance & Facilities Committee 

AGENDA ITEM: Local Funds Financial Statements for Month Ending March 31, 2024 

 

BACKGROUND:  

The Local Funds Financial Statements are presented for review. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

None.  This item is for information only. 

STAFF LIAISON: 

Heather Hardiman 
Vice President for Administration and  
  Chief Financial Officer 
hhardiman@tcc.edu  
757-822-1738 
 

mailto:hhardiman@tcc.edu


 Budget Revenues/ %
2024 Expenditures Realized

Fund Balance 7/1/2023 1,927,661$  1,927,661$     

 I.     Revenues
        A.  Student Activity Fee 724,743$     515,337$        -$                  209,406$       71%
        B.  ID Card Replacements 3,000          4,280             (1,280)           143%
Total Revenues 727,743$     519,617$        -$                  208,126$       71%

Total Resources (Revenue & Fund Bal.) 2,655,404$  2,447,278$     208,126$       

II.     Expenditures
        A.  Student Activities

1.  Student Government Association 6,000$        1,252$            -$                  4,748$           21%
2.  Programming 50,000        38,193            1,138                 10,669           79%
3.  Student Organizations 10,000        5,926             4,074             59%
4.  Contingency Fund 6,000          2,968             3,032             49%
5.  Gear Up To Lead 10,000        8,136             1,475                 389                96%
6.  VCCS Leadership Conference 10,000        9,200             800                92%
7.  Visual Arts & Design Center 3,100          300                2,800             10%
8.  Student Resource and Empowerment Center 11,000        86                  1,206                 9,708             12%
9.  Student Federation Council

 10.  Virtual Student Center 8,000          6,450             1,550                 100%
 11.  Student Honors Event 15,000        3,670             3,392                 7,938             47%
 12.  Literary Festival 5,000          1,500                 3,500             30%

Subtotal--Student Activities--College-wide 134,100$     76,181$          10,261$             47,658$         64%

       B.  College-wide Learning Assistance Fund
1. College-wide Learning Assistance Fund 77,793$      43,600$          -$                  34,193$         56%

Subtotal--College-wide Learning Assistance Fund 77,793$      43,600$          -$                  34,193$         56%

       C.  College-wide Contingency Fund
1.  College-wide Contingency Fund 15,000$      2,626$            -$                  12,374$         18%

Subtotal--College-wide Contingency Fund 15,000$      2,626$            -$                  12,374$         18%

       D.  Deans' Contingency Fund
1.  College-wide Deans' Contingency Fund 20,500$      16,386$          2,602$               1,512$           93%

Subtotal--Deans' Contingency Fund 20,500$      16,386$          2,602$               1,512$           93%

        E.  Student Activities Identification System
1.  Equipment, Software, and Supplies 36,000$      9,420$            -$                  26,580           26%

Subtotal--Student Activities Identification System 36,000$      9,420$            -$                  26,580$         26%

Total Expenditures 283,393$     148,213$        12,863$             122,317$       57%

III.   Transfers

       A.  Transfer to Student Center Budget 604,384$     453,288$        -$                  151,096$       75%
Subtotal--Transfers 604,384$     453,288$        -$                  151,096$       75%

Fund Balance  03/31 1,767,627$  1,845,777$     
Approved by the Local College Board on May 9, 2023  VPAF 04/11/24

TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE
 STUDENT ACTIVITIES BUDGET

July 1, 2023 - March 31, 2024

Encumbrances Variance



TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
STUDENT ACTIVITIES BUDGET 

Narrative Justification 
FY2024 

 
I. REVENUES 

The revenues for the Student Activities Budget are based on a projection of 11,008 
annualized FTES.   
A. Student Activity Fee – A fee of $2.55 per credit hour, up to a maximum of 15 credits, is 

assessed to all students, except those under special arrangement contracts. 
B. ID Card Replacements – A fee of $10 is charged for replacement student ID cards. TCC 

requires all students to carry their TCC ID card while on campus. 
 
II. EXPENDITURES 

A. Student Activities – Student Activities offices provide holistic student development and 
programming inclusive of, but not limited to, Student Government Association, student 
organizations, engagement, volunteerism, community outreach, leadership development, 
marketing, recreation, E-sports, diversity, and cultural inclusion that has been approved by 
the Dean of Campus Life. Student activities professionals utilize local funds to support the 
needs of the student population, promote student engagement and retention, and support 
the college’s strategic plan initiatives.  
1. Student Government Association – Funding is used for stipends, apparel, 

programming support, recruitment and retention, office supplies, campus-wide 
initiatives, and additional support as deemed appropriate and approved by the Dean of 
Campus Life. 

2. Programming – Funding is provided for planned student life programming which 
includes, but is not limited to, life skills, social integration, self-management, wellness, 
social responsibility, cultural awareness, diversity, inclusion, student and community 
engagement, enrichment, volunteerism, and leadership development. Programming 
support needs include, but are not limited to, speakers, presenters, entertainment, 
marketing, promotional materials, and apparel. 

3. Student Organizations – Funding is used for leadership development, club and 
organization support, conferences, training, speakers, enrichment, honor societies, 
campus initiatives, community outreach, student engagement, honorariums, and 
recognitions. 

4. Contingency Fund – Funding is provided to fund special initiatives, technology and 
equipment upkeep, and other miscellaneous expenses that may emerge during the fiscal 
year. 

5. Gear Up to Lead – Funding is provided for the Student Leadership program. 

6. VCCS Leadership Conference – Funding is provided for students to attend the VCCS 
Leadership Conference. 



7. Visual Arts & Design Center – Funds are provided for special art exhibitions, 
honoraria, refreshments for opening receptions, and other college-wide activities of the 
Visual Arts & Design Center. 

8. Student Resource and Empowerment Center – Funds support college-wide 
programs and services focused on issues critical to the success of all students, but 
specifically populations of underserved students to persist in their academic pursuits.  

9. Student Federation Council – Provides college-wide funding and support for the 
Student Government Association for professional and leadership development, 
training, conferences, registrations, education initiatives and affiliated student travel, 
honor cords and recognition, and professional organization memberships. This budget 
will be discontinued and redistributed to the Student Life SGA budget to enhance the 
student experience across the entire college ensuring that all students have equal access 
to high-quality events and activities that are tailored to their interests and needs. 

10. Virtual Student Center – Funding is provided to support the Virtual Student Center 
special initiatives and programming. Initiatives and programming support include, but 
is not limited to, speakers, presenters, entertainment, marketing, promotional materials, 
and apparel. 

11. Student Honors Event – Funding to support an annual academic event to celebrate 
students’ academic achievements. 

12. Literary Festival – Funds to support the annual Literary Festival. 
B. College-wide Learning Assistance Fund – Provides salaries for administrative support, 

tutors, and supplemental instructors to assist students experiencing academic difficulties 
and operating funds for tutoring centers on each campus.    

C. College-wide Contingency Fund – Provides the campus with funding to support campus 
student activities. Such activities include lecture series, speakers, and special events for 
current or prospective students, and public information related to such events. 

D. Deans’ Contingency Fund – Provides funding for the campus deans to support student 
success activities. These include welcome receptions for various student groups, student 
and staff recognitions, professional development, travel and other related expenses, 
campus improvements, meetings with students, staff and student workshops and retreats, 
and various student retention efforts.   

E. Student Activities Identification System – These funds are used for supplies and the 
CBORD software maintenance agreement for the college-wide student identification 
system.      
 

III. TRANSFERS – Funds are transferred to the Student Center budget to cover the costs of 
campus student activities and student ID personnel.    



 
 Budget Revenues/ %

2024 Expenditures Realized
Fund Balance  7/1/2023 18,453,959$  18,453,959$  

 I.     Revenues
        A.  Institutional Fee 2,074,753$    1,477,113$    -$                  597,640$     71%
        B.  Student Parking Sales 25,000           8,362             16,638         0%
        C.  Student HRT Pass Sales 15,000           16,999           (1,999)          113%
        D.  Miscellaneous Revenue 1,000             19,436           (18,436)        1944%
Total Revenues 2,115,753$    1,521,910$    -$                  593,843$     72%

Total Resources (Revenue & Fund Bal.) 20,569,712$  19,975,869$  

II.     Expenditures
        A.  Chesapeake Campus Parking Garage - Debt Service 1,639,240$    1,635,224$    -$                  4,016$         100%
        B.  Chesapeake Campus Parking Lot - Debt Service 332,625         331,791         834              100%
        C.  Chesapeake Parking Garage Operating Expenses
              1. Personnel
              2. Utilities 9,000             10,646           (1,646)          118%
              3. Security 10,000           10,000         0%
              4. General Maintenance 75,000 28,441           5,317                41,242         45%
        D.  College-wide Parking Lot Improvements 250,000 238,897            11,103         96%
        E.  Hampton Roads Transit (HRT) Passes 67,500 67,500           100%
        F.  Student Parking 65,000 4,415             60,585         7%
        G.  Visual Arts & Design Center Parking Lease
        H.  College-wide Wayfinding 3,000,000 62,364           1,180,517         1,757,119    41%
        I.   Security Camera Implementation 225,000 7,531             217,469       3%
Total Expenditures 5,673,365$    2,147,912$    1,424,731$       2,100,722$  63%

 Fund Balance  03/31 14,896,347$  17,827,957$  
Approved by the Local College Board on May 9, 2023 VPAF 04/11/24

TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE
 INSTITUTIONAL AUXILIARY BUDGET

July 1, 2023 - March 31, 2024

Encumbrances Variance



 

TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
INSTITUTIONAL AUXILIARY BUDGET 

Narrative Justification 
FY2024 

 
I. REVENUES 

The revenues for the Institutional Auxiliary Budget are based on a projection of 11,008 
annualized FTES.   
A. Institutional Fee – A fee of $7.30 per credit hour, up to a maximum of 15 credits, is 

assessed to all students, except those under special arrangement contracts.     
B. Student Parking Sales – Revenue from the sale of the City of Norfolk parking garage 

spaces to students on the Norfolk Campus. Student cost is at a reduced rate because the 
Institutional Fee subsidizes the total cost. 

C. Student HRT Pass Sales – Revenue from the sale of HRT passes to students at all 
campuses.  These passes are sold to students at a reduced rate because the Institutional Fee 
subsidizes the total cost. 

D. Miscellaneous Revenue – Revenue from leasing of the TCC parking lots or garage. 
 
II. EXPENDITURES 

A. Chesapeake Campus Parking Garage – Debt Service – Funds for the debt service of the 
Chesapeake Campus Parking Garage. Anticipated Bond payment end date September 
2032. 

B. Chesapeake Campus Parking Lot – Debt Service – Funds for the debt service of the 
Chesapeake Campus parking lot. Anticipated Bond payment end date September 2024.   

C. Chesapeake Campus Parking Garage – Operating Expenses – Funds for general 
maintenance, preventative maintenance, repair, security services, custodial, and the utilities 
associated with the Chesapeake Campus garage.  

D. College-wide Parking Lot Improvements – Funds to provide parking lot and roadway 
improvements on three campuses with such facilities.  

E. Hampton Roads Transit (HRT) Passes – Cost to purchase the GoSemester Passes from 
HRT to provide transportation services to students, including light rail, bus, and ferry.  

F. Student Parking – Cost of parking for students in City of Norfolk Parking Garage.   
G. Visual Arts & Design Center Parking Lease – Parking lease for 99 spots located in the 

Green District Building. This cost has been moved to the Auxiliary Services budget. 
H. College-wide Wayfinding – Costs to improve and enhance signage across all campuses 

and the District office. 
I. Security Camera Implementation – Cost to design and implement security cameras at 

the four student centers and the Chesapeake parking garage. 



TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE
 STUDENT CENTER BUDGET  
July 1, 2023 - March 31, 2024

  Budget Revenues/ %
2024 Expenditures Realized

Fund Balance  7/1/2023 15,877,758$    15,877,758$     

 I.     Revenues
A. Auxiliary Capital Fee 5,661,900$      3,987,779$       -$                   1,674,121$     70%
B. Transfer-In from Student Activities Budget 604,384           453,288            151,096          75%
C. Food Service Revenue 7,950               750                   7,200              9%
D. Miscellaneous Revenue 75,000             14,995              60,005            20%

Total Revenues 6,349,234$      4,456,812$       -$                   1,892,422$     70%

Total Resources (Revenue & Fund Balance) 22,226,992$    20,334,570$     

II.     Expenditures
A. Bond Debt Service

1.  Student Center - Norfolk Campus 1,140,474$      1,137,678$       -$                   2,796$            100%
2.  Student Center - Chesapeake Campus 1,213,249        1,158,068         55,181            95%
3.  Student Center - Portsmouth Campus 1,217,773        1,080,317         137,456          89%
4.  Student Center - Virginia Beach Campus 1,734,205        1,656,139         78,066            95%

Subtotal--Bond Debt Service 5,305,701$      5,032,202$       -$                   273,499$        95%

B. Norfolk Student Center
1.  General Operations

a.  Personnel 349,995$         191,737$          -$                   158,258$        55%
b.  Operating Expenses 25,000             19,817              4,559                 624                 98%

Subtotal--General Operations 374,995$         211,554$          4,559$               158,882$        58%

 2.  Facility Operations
a.  Utilities 105,600$         92,545$            -$                   13,055$          88%
b.  Security 115,000           48,748              66,252               100%
c.  Custodial
     1. Personnel 120,000           63,986              56,014            53%
     2. Expenditures 12,000             4,284                2,202                 5,514              54%
d.  General Maintenance
     1. Personnel 101,000           67,422              33,578            67%
     2. Expenditures 213,000           47,039              21,062               144,899          32%
e.  Insurance 8,200               8,733                (533)                107%
f.  Network & Telecommunications 35,942             26,957              8,986              75%

Subtotal--Facility Operations 710,742$         359,714$          89,516$             261,513$        63%

3.  Food Services
     a.  Equipment Mtce. & Replacement 8,500$             1,500$              1,180$               5,820$            32%
Subtotal--Food Services 8,500$             1,500$              1,180$               5,820$            32%

Subtotal--Norfolk Student Center 1,094,237$      572,768$          95,255$             426,214$        61%

C. Chesapeake Student Center
1.  General Operations

a.  Personnel 349,694$         196,432$          -$                   153,262$        56%
b.  Operating Expenses 25,000             19,867              3,633                 1,500              94%

Subtotal--General Operations 374,694$         216,299$          3,633$               154,762$        59%

VarianceEncumbrances



  Budget Revenues/ %
2024 Expenditures Realized

VarianceEncumbrances

2. Facility Operations
a.  Utilities 115,500$         101,606$          -$                   13,894            88%
b.  Security 80,000             47,739              32,261               100%
c.  Custodial
     1. Personnel 125,500           79,193              46,307            63%
     2. Expenditures 10,000             3,654                4,040                 2,306              77%
d.  General Maintenance
     1. Personnel 95,000             58,649              36,351            62%
     2. Expenditures 124,000           76,862              25,822               21,316            83%
e.  Insurance 9,000               9,586                (586)                107%
f.  Network & Telecommunications 34,686             26,015              8,672              75%

Subtotal--Facility Operations 593,686$         403,304$          62,123$             128,260$        78%

3.  Food Services
     a.  Equipment Mtce. & Replacement 10,000$           1,500$              -$                   8,500$            15%
Subtotal--Food Services 10,000$           1,500$              -$                   8,500$            15%

Subtotal--Chesapeake Student Center 978,380$         621,103$          65,756$             291,522$        70%

D. Portsmouth Student Center
1.  General Operations

a.  Personnel 352,364$         215,510$          -$                   136,854$        61%
b.  Operating Expenses 25,000             4,394                1,247                 19,359            23%

Subtotal--General Operations 377,364$         219,904$          1,247$               156,213$        59%

 2. Facility Operations
a.  Utilities 101,200$         38,389$            -$                   62,811$          38%
b.  Security 90,000             49,317              40,683               100%
c.  Custodial
     1. Personnel 122,000           51,716              70,284            42%
     2. Expenditures 12,500             4,063                4,085                 4,352              65%
d.  General Maintenance
     1. Personnel 95,000             64,815              30,185            68%
     2. Expenditures 94,000             45,862              16,811               31,327            67%
e.  Insurance 9,000               9,391                (391)                104%
f.  Network & Telecommunications 40,045             30,034              10,011            75%

Subtotal--Facility Operations 563,745$         293,587$          61,579$             208,579$        63%

3.  Food Services
     a.  Equipment Mtce. & Replacement 10,000$           1,500$              -$                   8,500$            15%
Subtotal--Food Services 10,000$           1,500$              -$                   8,500$            15%

Subtotal--Portsmouth Student Center 951,109$         514,991$          62,826$             373,292$        61%

 E.  Virginia Beach Student Center
1.  General Operations

a.  Personnel 456,932$         220,341$          -$                   236,591$        48%
b.  Operating Expenses 40,000             6,931                17,790               15,279            62%

Subtotal--General Operations 496,932$         227,272$          17,790$             251,870$        49%



  Budget Revenues/ %
2024 Expenditures Realized

VarianceEncumbrances

 2. Facility Operations
a.  Utilities 54,000$           24,249$            -$                   29,751$          45%
b.  Security 110,000           48,743              61,257               100%
c.  Custodial
     1. Personnel 182,000           86,923              95,077            48%
     2. Expenditures 15,000             2,769                2,645                 9,586              36%
d.  General Maintenance
     1. Personnel 105,000           99,408              5,592              95%
     2. Expenditures 112,500           47,673              32,344               32,483            71%
e.  Insurance 13,300             14,096              (796)                106%
f.  Network & Telecommunications 35,890             26,918              8,973              75%

Subtotal--Facility Operations 627,690$         350,779$          96,246$             180,666$        71%

3.  Food Services
     a.  Equipment Mtce. & Replacement 12,000$           7,473$              1,042$               3,485$            71%
Subtotal--Food Services 12,000$           7,473$              1,042$               3,485$            71%

Subtotal--Virginia Beach Student Center 1,136,622$      585,524$          115,078$           436,020$        62%

Total Expenditures 9,466,049$      7,326,586$       338,915$           1,800,547$     81%

III. Capital Maintenance Reserve 1,000,000$      1,000,000$       -$                   -$                100%

Fund Balance  03/31 11,760,944$    12,007,984$     
Approved by the Local College Board on May 9, 2023 VPAF 04/11/24

Capital Maintenance Reserve Fund
 FY14-FY24 11,500,000$    



TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
STUDENT CENTER BUDGET  

Narrative Justification  
FY2024 

 
I. REVENUES 

The revenues for the Student Center Budget are based on a projection of 11,008 
annualized FTEs.  
A. Auxiliary Capital Fee – A fee is assessed to all students up to a maximum of 15 credit 

hours. The fee is $20.00 per credit hour. 
B. Transfer-In from Student Activities Budget – This transfer reflects the funding of 

positions from the Student Activities budget.  
C. Food Service Revenue – Estimated revenue from the college’s food service contracts.   
D. Miscellaneous Revenue – Revenue generated from rental of student center facilities and 

other activities at the student centers.  
 

II. EXPENDITURES  
A. Bond Debt Service – Principal and interest payments due on VCBA Pooled Bonds used 

to finance the student centers. Anticipated last Bond payment dates – Norfolk and 
Portsmouth, September 2030, Virginia Beach and Chesapeake, September 2031. 

B-E. Norfolk, Chesapeake, Portsmouth, & Virginia Beach Student Centers –  
1. General Operations  

a. Personnel – Staffing costs for Norfolk, Chesapeake, Portsmouth, and Virginia 
Beach student centers, including costs for student activities personnel and student 
identification personnel.    

b. Operating Expenses – Funding for general operating expenses such as office 
supplies, travel, professional development, equipment repairs, etc.   

2. Facility Operations  
a. Utilities – Utilities services for the student centers. Utilities include electrical, 

natural gas, water, and sewer.  
b. Security – Unarmed security services for the student centers. The services are 

provided under the college’s security contract. Additional coverage is provided for 
special events and officers assigned elsewhere on campus are available to respond 
to situations, if necessary. Also includes additional funds for the cost of repairs and 
replacement of access controls at the student centers.  

c. Custodial – Personnel costs, consumable materials for housecleaning, and trash 
and garbage disposal services for the student centers.  

d. General Maintenance – Personnel costs, consumable materials, and contract 
services to maintain the student centers’ mechanical, electrical, and other building 
systems. Additional funds are included for anticipated maintenance and repairs.  

e. Insurance – Estimated cost of insurance for the student centers.  



f. Network & Telecommunications – Estimated cost of ongoing network and 
telecommunications support for the student centers.   

3. Food Services – Cost of maintenance, repair, and replacement of food service 
equipment. 

 
III. Capital Maintenance Reserve – Funds approximating two percent of the cost of the student 

center buildings will be transferred to a maintenance reserve account to fund future costs. 



Budget Revenue/ %
2024 Expenditures Realized

Fund Balance   7/1/2023 10,798,783$      10,798,783$      

 I.  Revenues 
        A.  Bookstore 750,000$           608,152$           -$                   141,848$        81%
        B.  Vending

1.  Exclusive Beverage Contract 60,000               66,011               (6,011)             110%
2.  Vending - CRH 26,000               17,440               8,560              67%

        C.  Municipal Support 18,000               12,000               6,000              67%
        D.  Interest Earnings 600,000             1,217,192          (617,192)         203%
        E.  Miscellaneous Revenue 400                    597                    (197)                149%
Total Revenues 1,454,400$        1,921,392$        -$                   (466,992)$       132%

Total Resources (Revenue & Fund Bal.) 12,253,183$      12,720,175$      

II.    Expenditures

       A.  Operating Expenses
             1.  Banking Costs 6,000$               546$                  5,454$            9%
             2.  Miscellaneous Expenses 1,000                 1,000                 100%
             3.  Joint-Use Library Food Service Equipment 1,840                 1,840              0%
Subtotal--Operating Expenses 8,840$               1,546$               -$                   7,294$            17%

       B.  Faculty/Staff Parking 300,000$           290,688$           54$                    9,258$            97%
       C.  College Community Events 30,000$             18,599$             1,000$               10,401$          65%
       D.  Financial Aid Adjustments 10,000$             10,000$             -$                       -$                    100%

       E.  Child Care Subsidy
             1.  Norfolk 120,000$           22,311$             -$                   97,689$          19%
             2.  Portsmouth 120,000             120,000          0%
Subtotal--Child Care Subsidy 240,000$           22,311$             -$                   217,689$        9%

       F.  Auxiliary Service Operations
             1.  Personnel 199,314$           128,282$           -$                   71,032$          64%
             2.  General Operating Costs 3,500                 2,986                 514                 85%
             3.  Equipment/Software/Installation  35,640               8,787 26,853            25%
             4.  StormCard Marketing 10,000               7,799                 85                      2,116              79%
Subtotal--Auxiliary Service Operations 248,454$           147,854$           85$                    100,515$        60%

       G.  Community Support
             1.  College Board 2,500$               1,198$               -$                   1,302$            48%
             2.  President 15,000               8,260                 398                    6,342              58%
             3.  Vice Presidents 
                  a. Vice President for Academic Affairs & Chief Academic Officer 6,000                 3,140                 750                    2,110              65%
                  b. Vice President for Administration & Chief Financial Officer 6,000                 3,443                 1,050                 1,507              75%
                  c. Vice President for Information Systems & Institutional Effectiveness 6,000                 1,702                 4,298              28%
                  d. Vice President for Institutional Advancement 6,000                 5,066                 934                 84%
                  e. Vice President for Workforce Solutions 6,000                 207                    5,793              3%
                  f.  Vice President for Student Affairs 6,000                 2,655                 3,345              44%
             4.  Campus Deans
                  a.  Portsmouth 6,000                 3,411                 2,589              57%
                  b.  Virginia Beach 12,000               1,983                 10,017            17%
                  c.  Chesapeake 6,000                 2,690                 3,310              45%
                  d.  Norfolk 6,000                 3,665                 2,335              61%
             5.  Community Outreach 27,000               4,011                 4,151                 18,838            30%
             6.  Contingencies 3,500                 3,500              0%
Subtotal--Community Support 114,000$           41,431$             6,349$               66,220$          42%

Variance

 TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE
AUXILIARY SERVICES BUDGET 

July 1, 2023 - March 31, 2024

Encumbrances



Budget Revenue/ %
2024 Expenditures Realized

VarianceEncumbrances

      H.  Deans' Discretionary Aid Fund
             1.  Chesapeake 6,000$               571$                  1,173$               4,256$            29%
             2.  Norfolk 6,000                 1,833                 651                    3,516              41%
             3.  Portsmouth 6,000                 627                    5,373              10%
             4.  Virginia Beach 11,000               2,734                 8,266              25%
Subtotal--Deans' Discretionary Aid Fund 29,000$             5,765$               1,824$               21,411$          26%

        I.  College Wide Athletics
             1.  Personnel 100,000$           100,000$        0%
             2.  General Operating Costs 
Subtotal--College Wide Athletics 100,000$           -$                   -$                   100,000$        0%

Subtotal--Expenditures 1,080,294$        538,194$           9,312$               532,788$        51%

III.  Student Financial Assistance
      A.  TCC Scholarships & Awards
            1.  Art Scholarships 15,000$             -$                   -$                   15,000$          0%
            2.  International Student Scholarships 15,500               15,500            0%
            3.  Culinary Match Program 3,000                 3,000              0%
            4.  Martin Luther King Scholarship 5,576                 5,576                 100%
            5.  Military Scholarships 28,103               7,111                 20,992            25%
            6.  ROTC Scholarships 13,489               1,524                 11,965            11%
            7.  High School Scholarships
                 a.  Chesapeake 66,096               55,275               10,821            84%
                      1. LaVonne P. Ellis Scholarship 11,121               11,121               100%
                      2. Terri N. Thompson Scholarship 11,121               11,121               100%
                 b.  Norfolk 43,704               20,361               23,343            47%
                      1. John T. Kavanaugh Scholarship 11,151               11,151               100%
                      2. John D. Padgett Scholarship 11,151               11,151               100%
                 c.  Portsmouth 21,132               14,752               6,380              70%
                      1. Lee B. Armistead Scholarship 11,151               11,151               100%
                 d.  Suffolk (Northern) 11,151               11,151            0%
                 e.  Virginia Beach 88,668               51,959               36,709            59%
                      1. Stanley Waranch Scholarship 11,151               11,151               100%
                      2. Dorcas T. Helfant-Browning Scholarship 11,151               11,151               100%
                      3. Thomas H. Wilson Scholarship 11,151               11,151               100%
                      4. Cynthia S. Free 11,151               11,151               100%
            8.  Dual Enrolled Scholarships
                      1. Chesapeake 5,700                 5,700              0%
                      2. Norfolk 5,700                 5,700              0%
                      3. Portsmouth 5,700                 5,700              0%
                      4. Virginia Beach 5,700                 5,700              0%
            9.  L.E.A.P. Scholarships 750,000             750,000             100%
                 a. L.E.A.P. Book Scholarships 200,000             34,449               165,551          17%
            10.  College-wide Scholarship 77,000               22,686               54,314            29%
Subtotal--TCC Scholarships & Awards 1,461,518$        1,063,992$        -$                   397,526$        73%

Total Expenditures & Student Financial Assistance 2,541,812$        1,602,186$        9,312$               930,314$        63%

Fund Balance  03/31 9,711,371$        11,117,989$      
Approved by the Local College Board on May 9, 2023 VPAF 04/11/24



 

TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
AUXILIARY SERVICES BUDGET 

Narrative Justification 
FY2024 

 
I.  REVENUES 

A. Bookstore – Includes sales commissions and sign-on bonus from the new bookstore 
contract.   

B. Vending – Commissions from vending sales at all four campuses and the District Office.   
C. Municipal Support – Contributions from the cities of Norfolk, Portsmouth, and Virginia 

Beach.    
D. Interest Earnings – Interest earnings are calculated on a $50 million average investment. 
E. Miscellaneous Revenue – Miscellaneous income from expired StormCard plans and other 

miscellaneous receipts. 
 
II. EXPENDITURES 

A. Operating Expenses – Cost of bank fees, check stock, credit card fees, miscellaneous 
service fees, etc.  

B. Faculty/Staff Parking – Cost of faculty/staff parking in Norfolk, including parking for 
adjunct faculty and visitors.   

C. College Community Events – Funds to sponsor events to enhance the spirit of community 
among the college’s faculty and staff.   

D. Financial Aid Adjustments – Funding for financial aid adjustments resulting from 
administrative errors or similar circumstances.    

E. Child Care Subsidy – Funding to assist students with financial need for the cost of 
childcare on the Norfolk and Portsmouth campuses, also includes subsidy costs for Child 
Care Center operations. 

F. Auxiliary Service Operations 
1. Personnel – Salaries and benefits for the college’s Auxiliary Services personnel.    
2. General Operating Costs – Funds for training, office supplies, travel, and other 

miscellaneous expenses for Auxiliary Services personnel.  

3. Equipment/Software/Installation – Funds to support the college’s StormCard system.  
Funds are included for equipment, software, and installation of data lines.   

4. StormCard Marketing – Funds used each year for promotional purposes. 
G. Community Support   

1. College Board – Funds for expenses of Board meetings and other Board related 
expenses. 

2., 3., & 4. President, Vice Presidents, and Campus Deans – Discretionary funds for hosting 
college-wide and/or required regional meetings for various administrators and ad hoc 
committees; luncheon and dinner meetings with various city and business officials; 



 

purchase of refreshments for meetings hosted at TCC; memberships in local and 
regional organizations to promote the college. 

5. Community Outreach – Cost of attending functions sponsored by various civic 
organizations, sponsorships, and other community outreach activities.   

6. Contingencies – Funds to support additional obligations of the Board. 
H. Deans’ Discretionary Aid Fund – Funds to assist students with emergency financial needs 

and enable them to attend classes at Tidewater Community College.  The need must relate 
to the student’s cost of attendance at the college.  
 

III. STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
A. TCC Scholarships & Awards  

1. Art Scholarships – Awards to students with outstanding portfolios for study in fine arts, 
graphic design, or photography at TCC’s Visual Arts Center. Fifteen $1,000 
scholarships are available. 

2. International Student Scholarships – Awards to international students on a competitive 
basis. 

3. Culinary Match Program – Matching funds for Culinary Scholarships donated to the 
college. 

4. Martin Luther King Scholarship – An award to a student who exemplifies the values 
of Dr. Martin Luther King.   

5. Military Scholarships – Awards to dependents of servicepersons from each branch of 
the military.   

6. ROTC Scholarships – Awards to TCC students participating in the college's ROTC 
program through Old Dominion University and Norfolk State University. 

7. High School Scholarships – Awards to an outstanding high school senior in each of the 
public high schools in the cities of Chesapeake, Norfolk, Portsmouth, Northern Suffolk, 
and Virginia Beach. Additional scholarships are included for the Advanced 
Technology Center in Virginia Beach, and the Norfolk and Chesapeake Technology 
Centers.  The awards are for tuition and fees for the first and second years of attendance 
at TCC. 
The Stanley Waranch Scholarship will be awarded annually to a Virginia Beach high 
school graduate of the Advanced Technology Center.  The Local College Board named 
the scholarship in honor of Mr. Waranch on June 26, 2003, for his dedication and 
exemplary service to Tidewater Community College and those it serves. 
The John T. Kavanaugh Scholarship will be awarded annually to a Norfolk high school 
graduate who has participated in the Navy Junior Reserve Officer Training Corps 
program.  The Local College Board named the scholarship in honor of Mr. Kavanaugh 
on June 25, 2009, for his dedication and exemplary service to Tidewater Community 
College and those it serves. 
The Dorcas T. Helfant-Browning Scholarship will be awarded annually to a Virginia 
Beach high school graduate.  The Local College Board named the scholarship in honor 



 

of Ms. Helfant-Browning on June 25, 2009, for her dedication and exemplary service 
to Tidewater Community College and those it serves. 
The LaVonne P. Ellis Scholarship will be awarded annually to a Chesapeake high 
school graduate.  The Local College Board named the scholarship in honor of Ms. Ellis 
on June 26, 2012, for her dedication and exemplary service to Tidewater Community 
College and those it serves. 
The Thomas H. Wilson Scholarship will be awarded annually to a Virginia Beach high 
school graduate.  The Local College Board named the scholarship in honor of Mr. 
Wilson on September 10, 2013, for his dedication and exemplary service to Tidewater 
Community College and those it serves. 
The Lee B. Armistead Scholarship will be awarded annually to a Portsmouth high 
school graduate. The Local College Board named the scholarship in honor of Dr. 
Armistead on May 10, 2016, for his dedication and exemplary service to Tidewater 
Community College and those it serves. 
The Terri N. Thompson Scholarship will be awarded annually to a Chesapeake high 
school graduate. The Local College Board named the scholarship in honor of Ms. 
Thompson on January 14, 2019, for her dedication and exemplary service to Tidewater 
Community College and those it serves. 
The John D. Padgett Scholarship will be awarded annually to a Norfolk high school 
graduate.  The Local College Board named the scholarship in honor of Mr. Padgett on 
May 11, 2021, for his dedication and exemplary service to Tidewater Community 
College and those it serves. 
The Cynthia S. Free Scholarship will be awarded annually to a Virginia Beach high 
school graduate.  The Local College Board is naming the scholarship in honor of Ms. 
Free for her dedication and exemplary service to Tidewater Community College and 
those it serves. 

8. Dual Enrolled Scholarships – Awards to high school students from the cities of 
Portsmouth, Virginia Beach, Chesapeake, and Norfolk.  Twenty-one scholarships will 
be awarded from each of the cities to need-based students for up to six credits.  

9. L.E.A.P. Scholarships – Awards to recent high school graduates who are enrolled in 
courses within the Learn Explore Accelerate Persevere (L.E.A.P.) Program. 

9a. L.E.A.P. Book Scholarships – Awards to recent high school graduates who are 
enrolled in courses within the Learn Explore Accelerate Persevere (L.E.A.P.) 
Program to cover the cost of books. 



 BALANCE INTEREST
 INVESTED 2023-24
July 31, 2023 54,054,710$           160,966$        
August 31, 2023 49,421,122$           108,537$        
September 30, 2023 49,925,828$           104,019$        
October 31, 2023 50,888,930$           177,891$        
November 30, 2023 51,688,661$           167,030$        
December 31, 2023 52,060,889$           106,125$        
January 31, 2024 51,827,591$           284,247$        
February 29, 2024 51,546,949$           103,854$        
March 31, 2024 51,472,889$           87,695$          
April 30, 2024 -$                        -$               
May 31, 2024 -$                        -$               
June 30, 2024 -$                        -$               

TOTAL 1,300,364$     Note 1

Detail:

Investment Category
Cumulative Average 

Yield Balance

Towne Bank - Raymond James 2.12% 35,881,199$     

Commonwealth - LGIP 5.48% 1,161,810$       
Commonwealth - LGIP Extended Maturity 0.00% -$                  
Towne Bank - Repurchase Agreements 5.31% 3,179,934$       

Towne Bank - Insured Cash Sweep 5.66% 11,249,947$     

TOTAL 51,472,889$     

TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE
INVESTMENTS

2023-24 STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

Note 1 - The investment earnings are reported based on statements received from the financial 
institution and may vary from the college's financial records due to timing differences.



TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE
LOCAL CONTRIBUTIONS
AS OF MARCH 31, 2024

LOCALITIES PLEDGED RECEIVED BALANCE
PORTSMOUTH:
  LOCAL BOARD (Operating) 6,000              6,000            
TOTAL-PORTSMOUTH 6,000$            6,000$          -$                

VIRGINIA BEACH:
  LOCAL BOARD (Operating) 6,000              6,000            
TOTAL-VIRGINIA BEACH 6,000$            6,000$          -$                

CHESAPEAKE:
  TECHNOLOGY -                 -                
  LOCAL BOARD (Operating) -                 -                
TOTAL-CHESAPEAKE -$               -$              -$                

NORFOLK:
  LOCAL BOARD (Operating) 6,000              6,000            
TOTAL-NORFOLK 6,000$            6,000$          -$                

TOTAL 18,000$          18,000$        -$                
VPAF 03/31/24



 

 TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

 NOMINATING COMMITTEE REPORT 

APRIL 22, 2024 

 
The Nominating Committee of the Tidewater Community College Board met on April 22, 2024, via 

Zoom.  

 

Members Present: Jerome Bynum William (Bill) Crow  

 Ron Green (Chair) Hope Sinclair 

 Matthew Stakes  

   

Members Absent: None  

   

Others Present: Dr. Marcia Conston, President 

 Latesha D. Johnson, Executive Assistant to the President 

  

1. Welcome and Call to Order 

Mr. Green, chair, determined the presence of a quorum and called the meeting to order at 3:01 p.m.   

2. Nomination of Officers 

Mr. Green reviewed the recent history of College Board vice chairs, noting that the board’s 

Policies and Procedures Manual w/ByLaws stipulates that “…the Nominating Committee shall be 

sensitive to locality representation and board rotation….” in its deliberations to nominate a College 

Board Chair and Vice Chair for 2024-26.   

After some discussion, on a motion by Mr. Crow, seconded by Mr. Stakes the committee voted 

unanimously to nominate Jerome Bynum as board vice chair for a two-year term beginning July 1, 

2024.  

On a motion by Mr. Crow, seconded by Mr. Bynum, the committee voted unanimously to nominate 

Jay Lucado as board chair for a one-year term beginning July 1, 2024.    

3. Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the committee, Mr. Green adjourned the meeting at 

3:15 p.m. 

 

 

APPROVAL:                                                                                            

              

 

____________________ 

Ron Green 

Chair        



 

 TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

 MEETING OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE  

APRIL 23, 2024 

 
The Executive Committee of the Tidewater Community College Board met on April 23, 2024, at the Green 

District Administration Building. 

Members Present: Dr. Barry Brown James (Jay) Lucado 

 Lynn Clements Kim McCallum 

 Dr. Kirk Houston  

   

Members Absent: None  

 

Others Present: 

 

Dr. Marcia Conston, President & Secretary to the Board 

 Latesha D. Johnson, Executive Assistant to the President & Board Liaison 

 

  

1. Welcome and Call to Order 

Ms. Clements, chair, determined the presence of a quorum and called the meeting to order at 3:10 p.m.  

 

2. Discuss the President’s Self-Evaluation 

At the invitation of Ms. Clements, Dr. Conston reviewed her self-assessment. She highlighted many 

accomplishments at the college in the past year. Dr. Conston also shared that she is actively involved 

in the community by participating on several boards and attending community events. She addressed 

enrollment and its challenges, dual enrollment, fundraising, marketing, and strategies to increase 

enrollment. After further questions and discussion, the Executive Committee endorsed the 

assessment as presented.    

 

3. Review the College Board’s Assessment (via Qualtrics) on the President’s Performance 

In accordance with section 2.2-3711(A) of the Code of Virginia, the executive committee moved to 

meet in closed session to review in detail the College Board’s assessment of the president’s 

performance.  Dr. Conston and Ms. Johnson were excused from the meeting.  

 

The executive committee later concluded its closed session and reconvened the open session.  Ms. 

Johnson returned to the meeting. A roll call vote was taken, and all committee members were present 

certifying that to the best of each member’s knowledge (I) only public business matters lawfully 

exempted from open requirements under the Freedom of Information Act and (II) only such public 

business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting was convened were 

heard, discussed, or considered in the meeting by the Committee. 

The Executive Committee will present its final recommendations on the president’s performance to 

the full board for consideration in closed session at its May 14th board meeting. Subsequently, the 

board chair will provide a final evaluation letter to the chancellor on the College Board’s behalf.  

 

 



   
TCC Board 

Executive Committee Meeting 

April 23, 2024 

Page 2 

 

Latesha D. Johnson 
 

Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the executive committee, Ms. Clements adjourned the 

meeting at 5:20 p.m. 

 

                                                                           Respectfully submitted,                                                                                            

                                                                        

                                                                                            
      Latesha D. Johnson 

      Executive Assistant to the President & Board Liaison 

 

APPROVAL: 

 

 

     

Lynn B. Clements 

Chair 

 

 

 

 


	BoardDocument May 14 - New Program Request Electrified Powertrains.pdf
	Board_Agenda Item_ElectrifiedPowertrains
	Elecrified Vehicle Certificate Revision 2.29.24

	Board Document RestaurantMgmtDiscontinuance.pdf
	Discontinuance_CSC_Restaurant Management
	ProgramCourseGuide_221-241-60

	Finance & Facilities_Consent.pdf
	4_Narrative_Policy3201
	5_Narrative_STA
	5a_Lease_Amendment
	7_Narrative_Statements
	7a_FY24_Student_Activities
	   Stu Act

	7b_Narrative_FY24_Student_Activities
	TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE
	STUDENT ACTIVITIES BUDGET
	Narrative Justification
	FY2024
	I. REVENUES
	II. EXPENDITURES

	7c_FY24_Institutional_Auxiliary
	  Inst Aux

	7d_Narrative_FY24_Institutional_Auxiliary
	I. REVENUES
	II. EXPENDITURES

	7e_FY24_Student_Center
	  Stud Centr 

	7f_Narrative_FY24_Student_Center
	7g_FY24_Auxiliary_Services
	 Aux Serv

	7h_Narrative_FY24_Auxiliary_Services
	I.  REVENUES
	II. EXPENDITURES
	A. TCC Scholarships & Awards

	2b_Earnings
	Summary

	7i_Local_Contributions
	Sheet1


	Local Fund Financial Statements_Information.pdf
	4_Narrative_Policy3201
	5_Narrative_STA
	5a_Lease_Amendment
	7_Narrative_Statements
	7a_FY24_Student_Activities
	   Stu Act

	7b_Narrative_FY24_Student_Activities
	TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE
	STUDENT ACTIVITIES BUDGET
	Narrative Justification
	FY2024
	I. REVENUES
	II. EXPENDITURES

	7c_FY24_Institutional_Auxiliary
	  Inst Aux

	7d_Narrative_FY24_Institutional_Auxiliary
	I. REVENUES
	II. EXPENDITURES

	7e_FY24_Student_Center
	  Stud Centr 

	7f_Narrative_FY24_Student_Center
	7g_FY24_Auxiliary_Services
	 Aux Serv

	7h_Narrative_FY24_Auxiliary_Services
	I.  REVENUES
	II. EXPENDITURES
	A. TCC Scholarships & Awards

	2b_Earnings
	Summary

	7i_Local_Contributions
	Sheet1


	Finance & Facilities_Proposed_Statements.pdf
	3_Narrative_Proposed_Statements
	3a_FY25_Student_Activities
	   Stu Act

	3b_Narrative_FY25_Student_Activities
	TIDEWATER COMMUNITY COLLEGE
	PROPOSED STUDENT ACTIVITIES BUDGET
	Narrative Justification
	FY 2025
	I. REVENUES
	II. EXPENDITURES

	3c_FY25_Institutional_Auxiliary
	Proposed Inst Aux

	3d_Narrative_FY25_Institutional_Auxiliary
	I. REVENUES
	II. EXPENDITURES

	3e_FY25_Student_Center
	  Stud Centr 

	3f_Narrative_FY25_Student_Center
	3g_FY25_Auxiliary_Services
	 Aux Serv

	3h_Narrative_FY25_Auxiliary_Services
	I.  REVENUES
	II. EXPENDITURES
	A. TCC Scholarships & Awards





